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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2010

o Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act

for the transition period from          to          

Commission File No. 000-28344

FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

South Carolina 57-1010751
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(State of Incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification)

5455 Sunset Boulevard, Lexington, South Carolina 29072

(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

(803) 951-2265

(Registrant�s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

(Former Name, Former Address and Former Fiscal Year, if Changed Since Last Report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes  x   No  o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).  o  Yes   o  No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company.  See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer,� and  �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o

Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes  o   No  x

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer�s classes of common equity, as of the latest practicable date:  On November 12,
2010, 3,265,809 shares of the issuer�s common stock, par value $1.00 per share, were issued and outstanding.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1.  Financial Statements

FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30,
2010 December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except par value) (Unaudited) 2009
ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $ 9,831 $ 6,752
Interest-bearing bank balances 21,599 13,635
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell 422 457
Investment securities - available for sale 153,843 131,836
Investment securities - held to maturity (market value of $39,820 and $49,092 at September,
2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively) 42,478 56,104
Other investments, at cost 6,984 7,904
Loans 329,713 344,187
Less, allowance for loan losses 4,841 4,854
Net loans 324,872 339,333
Property, furniture and equipment - net 18,126 18,666
Bank owned life insurance 10,747 10,551
Other real estate owned 7,373 3,167
Intangible assets 1,036 1,502
Other assets 14,138 15,920
Total assets $ 611,449 $ 605,827

LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing demand $ 76,252 $ 72,656
NOW and money market accounts 119,371 104,659
Savings 31,022 25,757
Time deposits less than $100,000 145,805 156,422
Time deposits $100,000 and over 89,181 90,082
Total deposits 461,631 449,576
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 15,883 20,676
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 68,826 73,326
Junior subordinated debt 15,464 15,464
Other borrowed money 120 164
Other liabilities 5,636 5,181
Total liabilities 567,560 564,387

SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 11,350 issued and
outstanding 11,011 10,939
Common stock, par value $1.00 per share; 10,000,000 shares authorized; issued and
outstanding 3,265,809 at September 30, 2010 3,252,358 at December 31, 2009 3,266 3,252
Common stock warrants issued 509 509
Nonvested restricted stock � (79)
Additional paid in capital 48,939 48,873
Retained earnings (deficit) (19,832) (20,401)
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (4) (1,653)
Total shareholders� equity 43,889 41,440
Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 611,449 $ 605,827

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)

Nine Nine
Months Ended Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Interest income:
Loans, including fees $ 14,970 $ 15,046
Taxable securities 5,632 7,926
Non taxable securities 168 255
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 44 42
Other 28 26
Total interest income 20,842 23,295
Interest expense:
Deposits 4,860 6,842
Federal funds sold and securities sold under agreement to repurchase 50 77
Other borrowed money 2,277 3,263
Total interest expense 7,187 10,182
Net interest income 13,655 13,113
Provision for loan losses 1,365 2,057
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 12,290 11,056
Non-interest income:
Deposit service charges 1,421 1,731
Mortgage origination fees 691 622
Investment advisory fees and non-deposit commissions 416 337
Gain on sale of securities 324 654
Fair value gain (loss) adjustments (644) 66
Other-than-temporary-impairment write-down on securities (799) (921)
Other 1,265 1,221
Total non-interest income 2,674 3,710
Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 6,610 6,252
Occupancy 918 896
Equipment 873 944
Marketing and public relations 301 261
FDIC assessments 735 902
Other real estate expense 536 138
Amortization of intangibles 466 466
Impairment of goodwill � 27,761
Other 2,597 2,753
Total non-interest expense 13,036 40,373
Net income (loss) before tax 1,928 (25,607)
Income taxes 471 492
Net income (loss) $ 1,457 $ (26,099)
Preferred stock dividends, including discount accretion 497 493
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders $ 960 $ (26,592)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.29 $ (8.17)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.29 $ (8.17)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)

Three Three
Months Ended Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Interest income:
Loans, including fees $ 4,946 $ 5,119
Taxable securities 1,755 2,486
Non taxable securities 91 87
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 17 14
Other 9 8
Total interest income 6,818 7,714
Interest expense:
Deposits 1,555 2,138
Federal funds sold and securities sold under agreement to repurchase 13 22
Other borrowed money 767 1,073
Total interest expense 2,335 3,233
Net interest income 4,483 4,481
Provision for loan losses 235 665
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 4,248 3,816
Non-interest income:
Deposit service charges 459 599
Mortgage origination fees 342 159
Commission on sale of non deposit investment products 82 85
Gain on sale of securities 218 291
Fair value gain (loss) adjustments (201) (185)
Other-than-temporary-impairment write-down on securities (440) (179)
Other 462 390
Total non-interest income 922 1,160
Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 2,305 2,112
Occupancy 312 307
Equipment 290 321
Marketing and public relations 105 99
FDIC assessment 323 215
Other real estate expense 243 23
Amortization of intangibles 155 156
Impairment of goodwill � 27,761
Other 911 926
Total non-interest expense 4,644 31,920
Net income (loss) before tax 526 (26,944)
Income taxes 132 141
Net income (loss) $ 394 $ (27,085)
Preferred stock dividends, including discount accretion 166 165
Net income available to common shareholders $ 228 $ (27,250)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.07 $ (8.35)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.07 $ (8.35)
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Statement of Changes in Shareholders� Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Nine Months ended September 30, 2010 and September 30, 2009

Other
Common Additional Nonvested Retained Comprehensive

Preferred Shares Common Stock Paid-in Restricted Earnings Income
(Dollars in thousands) Stock Issued Stock Warrants Capital Stock (Deficit) (Loss) Total
Balance, December 31, 2008 $ 10,850 3,227 $ 3,227 $ 509 $ 48,732 $ (186) $ 6,263 $ (1,239) $ 68,156
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income (loss) (26,099) (26,099)
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain during period
on available-for-sale securities
net of tax of $1,024 2,215
Unrealized market loss on
held-to- maturity securities net
of tax benefit of $580 (1,096)
Less: reclassification
adjustment for gain included in
net loss,net of tax benefit $107 (160)
Other comprehensive income 959 959
Comprehensive loss: (25,140)
Amortization of compensation
on restricted stock 80 80
Dividends: Common ($0.20 per
share) (647) (647)
Preferred 68 (493) (425)
Dividend reinvestment plan 21 21 120 141
Balance, September 30, 2009 $ 10,918 3,248 $ 3,248 $ 509 $ 48,852 $ (106) $ (20,976) $ (280) $ 42,165

Balance, December 31, 2009 $ 10,939 3,252 $ 3,252 $ 509 $ 48,873 $ (79) $ (20,401) $ (1,653) $ 41,440
Comprehensive income:
Net income 1,457 1,457
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain during period
on available-for-sale securities
net of tax of $732 1,341
Less: reclassification
adjustment for gain included in
net income, net of tax $113 (211)
Reclassification adjustment for
Other-than-temporary
impairment included in income
net of tax benefit of $280 519
Other comprehensive income 1,649 1,649
Comprehensive income: 3,106
Amortization of compensation
on restricted stock 79 79
Dividends: Common ($0.12 per
share) (391) (391)
Preferred 72 (497) (425)
Dividend reinvestment plan 14 14 66 80
Balance, September 30, 2010 $ 11,011 3,266 3,266 $ 509 $ 48,939 $ �$ (19,832) $ (4) $ 43,889
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine months ended September 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 1,457 $ (26,099)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided in operating activities:
Depreciation 667 745
Premium amortization (discount accretion) 943 (34)
Provision for loan losses 1,365 2,057
Amortization of intangibles 466 466
Gain on sale of securities (324) (654)
Other-than-temporary-impairment on securities 799 921
Goodwill Impairment � 27,761
Net (increase) decrease in fair value option instruments and derivatives 644 (66)
Decrease in other assets 2,198 1,617
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 574 (180)
Net cash provided in operating activities 8,789 6,534
Cash flows form investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities available-for-sale (100,532) (52,972)
Maturity of investment securities available-for-sale 30,933 40,997
Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale 56,504 17,489
Purchase of investment securities held-to-maturity (10) (2,123)
Maturity of investment securities held-to-maturity 6,962 11,108
Maturity of securities held-for-trading � 614
Decrease (increase) in loans 6,760 (16,348)
Purchase of property and equipment (127) (418)
Net cash provided (used) in investing activities 490 (1,653)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in deposit accounts 11,995 23,320
Decrease in securities sold under agreements to repurchase (4,793) (8,882)
Decrease in other borrowings (44) (28)
Advances from the FHLB � 4,000
Repayment of advances FHLB (4,620) (10,120)
Dividends paid: Common Stock (391) (647)
Preferred Stock (497) (426)
Dividend reinvestment plan 79 141
Net cash provided from financing activities 1,729 7,358
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,008 12,239
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 20,844 12,367
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 31,852 $ 24,606
Supplemental disclosure:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 6,939 $ 10,666
Income taxes $ � $ 350
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities $ 1,651 $ 1,528
Transfer of loans to foreclosed property $ 6,339 $ 1,878
Transfer of HTM securities with OTTI to AFS securities $ 5,800 $ �

7
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1    - Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation

First Community Corporation, a bank holding company registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the �Company�),
was incorporated under the laws of South Carolina in 1994 primarily to own and control all of the capital stock of First Community Bank, N.A.
(the �Bank�), which commenced operations in August 1995. On October 1, 2004, the Company completed its acquisition of DutchFork
Bancshares, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Newberry Federal Savings Bank.  During the second quarter of 2006, the Company
completed its acquisition of DeKalb Bankshares, Inc., the holding company for The Bank of Camden. On September 15, 2008, the Company
completed the acquisition of two financial planning and investment advisory firms, EAH Financial Group and Pooled Resources, LLC. The
Company engage in a commercial banking business from our main office in Lexington, South Carolina and our 11 full-service offices located in
Lexington (two), Forest Acres, Irmo, Cayce-West Columbia, Gilbert, Chapin, Northeast Columbia, Prosperity, Newberry and Camden. The
Company offers a wide-range of traditional banking products and services for professionals and small-to medium-sized businesses, including
consumer and commercial, mortgage, brokerage and investment, and insurance services.  The Company also offers online banking to our
customers. The Company�s stock trades on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol FCCO.

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated balance sheets, the consolidated statements of income, the
consolidated statements of changes in shareholders� equity, and the consolidated statements of cash flows of  the Company, present fairly in all
material respects the Company�s financial position at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company�s results of operations for the
nine and three months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, and the Company�s cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 and
2009. The results of operations for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2010 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be
expected for the year ending December 31, 2010.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary to fairly present the consolidated financial position and consolidated results of
operations have been made. All such adjustments are of a normal, recurring nature.  All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation. The consolidated financial statements and notes thereto are presented in accordance with the instructions for
Form 10-Q.  The information included in the Company�s 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K should be referred to in connection with these
unaudited interim financial statements.

Note 2 � Earnings Per Share

The following reconciles the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per share computation:

Nine months Three months
ended September 30, ended September 30,

(In thousands, except price per share) 2010 2009 2010 2009
Numerator (Net income (loss) available to
common shareholders) $ 960 $ (26,592) $ 228 $ (27,250)
Denominator
Weighted average common shares outstanding
for:
Basic earnings per share 3,259 3,253 3,264 3,262
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Dilutive securities:
Stock options � Treasury stock method � � � �
Diluted earnings per share 3,259 3,253 3,264 3,262
The average market price used in calculating
assumed number of shares $ 6.02 $ 6.76 $ 5.55 $ 6.59

At September 30, 2010 there were 190,256 outstanding options at an average exercise price of $13.28 and warrants for 196,000 shares at $8.69. 
None of the options or warrants has an exercise price below the average market price of $6.02 and $5.55 for the nine and three-month periods
ended September 30, 2010, respectively, and therefore are not deemed to be dilutive.  At September 30, 2009 there were 191,000 outstanding
options at an average exercise price of

8
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$13.33 and warrants for 196,000 shares at $8.69.  None of the options or warrants has an exercise price below the average market price of $6.76
and $6.59 for the nine and three-month period ended September 30, 2009 and therefore are not deemed to be dilutive.

Note 3 �Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

In connection with the adoption of the Fair Value Option, the Company adopted the requirements of the FASB ASC Fair Value Measurement
Topic which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.  Fair
value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The Fair Value
Measurement Topic also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

9
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Note 3 �Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value - continued

Level l Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are
not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or
liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted
cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant
management judgment or estimation.

Following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis:

Investment Securities Available for Sale: Measurement is on a recurring basis based upon quoted market prices, if available.  If quoted market
prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the
present value of future cash flows, adjusted for prepayment assumptions, projected credit losses, and liquidity.  Level 1 securities include those
traded on an active exchange or by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets.  Level 2 securities include mortgage-backed securities
issued both issued by government sponsored enterprises and private label mortgage-backed securities.  Generally these fair values are priced
from established pricing models.  Level 3 securities include corporate debt obligations and asset�backed securities that are less liquid or for which
there is an inactive market.

Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity: Investment securities that are held-to-maturity and considered other-than-temporarily-impaired are
recorded at fair value in accordance with the FASB ASC Topic on �Investments- Debt and Equity Securities� on a non recurring basis.  If the
Company does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security, other-than-temporary-impairment (OTTI) is considered to
have occurred.  See Note 4 for determining allocation between current earnings and comprehensive income.  Measurement is based upon quoted
market prices, if available.  If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing models or other
model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for prepayment assumptions, projected credit losses,
and liquidity.  Level 2 securities include private label mortgage-backed securities.  Generally these fair values are priced from established
pricing models.

Loans: Loans that are considered impaired are recorded at fair value on a non-recurring basis.  Once a loan is considered impaired, measurement
is based upon FASB ASC 310-10-35 �Loan Impairment�.  The fair value is estimated using one of several methods, including collateral
liquidation value, market value of similar debt and discounted cash flows.  Those impaired loans not requiring a specific charge against the
allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments or collateral meet or exceed the recorded investment in the loan. 
At September 30, 2010, substantially all of the total impaired loans were evaluated based on the fair value of the underlying collateral.  When
the Company records the fair value based upon a current appraisal the fair value measurement is considered when a current appraisal is not
available or there is estimated further impairment the measurement is considered a Level 3 measurement.

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO): OREO is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value on a non-recurring basis.  Fair value is based
upon independent appraisals or management�s estimation of the collateral.  When the OREO value is based upon a current appraisal or when a
current appraisal is not available or there is estimated further impairment the measurement is considered a Level 2 measurement.
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Derivative Financial Instruments:  Interest rate swaps and interest rate caps are carried at fair value and measured on a recurring basis. The
measurement is based on valuation techniques including discounted cash flows analysis for each derivative.  The analysis reflects the contractual
remaining term of derivative, interest rates, volatility and expected cash payments.  The measurement of the interest rate swap and cap are
considered to be a Level 3 measurement.
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Note 3 �Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value � continued

Goodwill  and Other Intangible Assets:  Goodwill and other intangible assets are measured for impairment on an annual basis, as of
September 30, or more frequently if there is a change in circumstances.  If the goodwill or other intangibles exceed the fair value, an impairment
charge is recorded in an amount equal to the excess.  Impairment is tested utilizing accepted valuation techniques utilizing discounted cash flows
of the business unit, and implied fair value based on a multiple of earnings and tangible book value for merger transactions.  The measurement
of these fair values is considered a Level 3 measurement.  The goodwill impairment test as of September 30, 2009 reflected impairment in the
amount of $27.8 million, and, as a result, the balance of goodwill was written off as of that date.

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances:  The fair value is calculated on a recurring basis using a discounted cash flow model based on current
rate for advances with similar remaining terms.  The measurement of these advances is considered Level 3 measurement.

The following tables reflect the changes in fair values for the nine and three-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 and where these
changes are included in the income statement:

(Dollars in thousands)

Nine months ended
September 30,

Three months ended
September 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009

Description

Non-interest
income:

Fair value
adjustment
gain (loss)

Non-interest
income:

Fair value
adjustment
gain (loss)

Non-interest
income:

Fair value
adjustment
 gain (loss)

Non-interest
income:

Fair value
adjustment
gain (loss)

Trading securities $ � $ 41 $ � $ 16
Interest rate cap/swap (644) 10 (201) (210)
Federal Home Loan Bank
Advance � 15 � 9
Total $ (644) $ 66 $ (201) $ (185)

The following table summarizes quantitative disclosures about the fair value for each category of assets carried at fair value as of September 30,
2010 and December 31, 2009 that are measured on a recurring basis.

(Dollars in thousands)

Description September 30,
2010

Quoted
Prices in
Active

Significant
Other

Observable

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
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Markets for
Identical

Assets
(Level 1)

Inputs
(Level 2)

(Level 3)

Available for sale securities
Government sponsored enterprises 13,901 � 13,901 �
Mortgage backed securities 79,657 � 79,657 �
Small Business Administration
securities 42,336 � 42,336 �
State and local government 13,037 � 13,037 �
Corporate and other securities 4,912 1,056 2,302 1,554

153,843 1,056 151,233 1,554

Interest rate cap/swap (923) � � (923)
Total $ 152,920 $ 1,056 $ 151,233 $ 631

11
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Note 3 �Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value � continued

(Dollars in thousands)

Description
December
31, 2009

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical

Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Available for sale securities
Government sponsored enterprises 7,718 � 7,718 �
Mortgage backed securities 94,124 � 94,124 �
Small Business Administration
securities 9,408 � 9,408 �
State and local government 8,179 � 8,179 �
Corporate and other securities 12,407 1,215 5,412 5,780

131,836 1,215 124,841 5,780

Interest rate cap/floor (535) � � (535)
Total $ 131,301 $ 1,215 $ 124,841 $ 5,245

The following tables reconcile the changes in Level 3 financial instruments for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2010, that are
measured on a recurring basis.

Available
for

Sale
securities

Interest rate
Cap/Floor

Beginning Balance, December 31, 2009 $ 5,780 $ (535)
Gain (loss) recognized (1,026) (644)
Payments made (received) (3,200) 256
Ending Balance, September 30, 2010 $ 1,554 $ (923)

Available
for

Sale
securities

Interest rate
Cap/Floor

Beginning Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 1,757 $ (807)
Gain (loss) recognized (203) (201)
Payment made (received) � 85
Ending Balance, September 30, 2010 $ 1,554 $ (923)

The following tables summarize quantitative disclosures about the fair value for each category of assets carried at fair value as of September 30,
2010 and December 31, 2009 that are measured on a non-recurring basis.  Goodwill and other intangible assets are measured on a non-recurring
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basis at least annually.  The valuation is performed at September 30 of each year.

(Dollars in thousands)

Description
September
 30, 2010

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Impaired loans $ 9,473 $ � $ 9,473 $ �
Other real estate owned 7,373 � 7,373 �
Total $ 16,846 $ � $ 16,846 $ �

12

Edgar Filing: FIRST COMMUNITY CORP /SC/ - Form 10-Q

22



Table of Contents

Note 3 �Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value � continued

Description
December
31, 2009

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Impaired loans $ 5,687 $ � $ 5,687 $ �
Held-to-maturity securities (OTTI) 2,277 � 2,277 �
Other real estate owned 3,167 � 3,167 �
Total $ 11,131 $ � $ 11,131 $ �

Note 4�INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of investment securities are summarized below:

HELD-TO-MATURITY:

(Dollars in thousands)
Amortized

Cost

OTTI
Recognized

 In AOCI

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
September 30, 2010:
State and local government $ 2,666 $ � $ 94 $ � $ 2,760
Mortgage-backed securities 39,752 � 693 3,444 37,001
Other 60 � � 1 59

$ 42,478 $ � $ 787 $ 3,445 $ 39,820
December 31, 2009:
State and local government $ 2,711 $ � $ 94 $ � $ 2,805
Mortgage-backed securities 53,333 1,676 389 5,816 46,230
Other 60 � � 3 57

$ 56,104 $ 1,676 $ 483 $ 5,819 $ 49,092

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE:

(Dollars in thousands)
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
September 30, 2010:
Government sponsored enterprises $ 13,805 $ 96 $ � $ 13,901
Mortgage-backed securities 80,521 1,095 1,959 79,657
Small Business Administration pools 41,573 766 3 42,336
State and local government 12,160 877 � 13,037
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Corporate and other securities 5,828 181 1,097 4,912
$ 153,887 $ 3,015 $ 3,059 $ 153,843

December 31, 2009:
Government sponsored enterprises 7,682 50 14 7,718
Mortgage-backed securities 93,131 2,096 1,103 94,124
Small Business Administration pools 9,354 74 20 9,408
State and local government 8,106 123 50 8,179
Corporate and other securities 14,495 361 2,449 12,407

$ 132,768 $ 2,704 $ 3,636 $ 131,836

During the nine months ended September 30, 2010 and September 30, 2009, the Company received proceeds of $56.5 million and $17.5 million,
respectively, from the sale of investment securities available-for-sale.  Gross realized gains amounted to $2.0 million and gross realized losses
amounted to $1.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, gross realized gains
amounted to $654,000 and there were no
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Note 4�Investment Securities - continued

gross unrealized losses.  As prescribed by FASB ASC 320-10-35, for the quarter ended September 30, 2010, the Company recognized the credit
component of an OTTI of its debt securities in earnings and the non-credit component in other comprehensive income (OCI) for those securities
in which the Company does not intend to sell the security and it is more likely than not the Company will not be required to sell the securities
prior to recovery.

At September 30, 2010, corporate and other securities available-for-sale included the following at fair value: corporate bonds at $3.0 million,
CDOs of $905,000, mutual funds at $889,000 and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation preferred stock of $167,000.

At December 31, 2009, corporate and other securities available-for-sale included the following at fair value: corporate bonds at $6.3 million,
CDOs of $4.9 million, mutual funds at $865,000 and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation preferred stock of $348,000.

During the nine and three months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded OTTI losses on held-to-maturity and
available-for-sale securities as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Nine months ended
September 30, 2010

Three months ended
September 30, 2010

Held-to-
maturity

mortgage-
backed

securities

Available-
for-sale

securities Total

Held-to-
maturity

mortgage-
backed

securities

Available-
for-sale

securities Total
Total OTTI charge realized and
unrealized $ � $ 1,558 $ 1,558 $ � $ 440 $ 440
OTTI recognized in other
comprehensive income (non-credit
component) � 759 759 � 0 0
Net impairment losses recognized in
earnings (credit component) $ � $ 799 $ 799 $ � $ 440 $ 440

(Dollars in thousands)

Nine months ended
September 30, 2009

Three months ended
September 30, 2009

Held-to-
maturity

Available-
for-sale

Total Held-to-
maturity

Available-
for-sale

Total

Edgar Filing: FIRST COMMUNITY CORP /SC/ - Form 10-Q

25



mortgage-
backed

securities

securities mortgage-
backed

securities

securities

Total OTTI charge realized and
unrealized $ 1,952 $ 862 $ 2,814 $ 72 $ 107 $ 179
OTTI recognized in other
comprehensive income (non-credit
component) 1,676 217 1,893 � � �
Net impairment losses recognized in
earnings (credit component) $ 276 $ 645 $ 921 $ 72 $ 107 $ 179
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Note 4�Investment Securities - continued

During 2010 and 2009, OTTIs occurred for which only a portion is attributed to credit loss and recognized in earnings.  The remainder was
reported in other comprehensive income.  The following is an analysis of amounts relating to credit losses on debt securities recognized in
earnings during the nine months ended September 30, 2010 and September 30, 2009.

(Dollars in thousands)

2010 2009
Available for Held to Held to

Sale maturity maturity

Balance at beginning of period $ 165 $ 326 �

Other-than-temporary-impairment not previously recognized 146 98 147

Additional increase for which an other-than-temporary impairment was
previously recognized related to credit losses 527 28 �
Realized losses during the period (73) � �
Transfer to available-for-sale 452 (452)
Balance related to credit losses on debt securities at end of period $ 1,217 $ � $ 147

As of September 30, 2010, those debt securities with OTTI in which only the amount of loss related to credit was recognized in earnings
included three non-agency mortgage-backed securities.  The Company uses a third party to obtain information about the structure in order to
determine how the underlying cash flows will be distributed to each security.  Relevant assumptions such as prepayment rate, default rate and
loss severity on a loan level basis are used in determining the expected recovery of the remaining unrealized losses.  The average prepayment
rate, default rate and severity used in the valuations were approximately 8%, 13%, and 41%, respectively.

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair values, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous loss position at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
September 30, 2010
(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss

Available-for-sale securities:
US Treasury and Government
sponsored enterprises $ � $ � $ � $ � $ � $ �
Small Business Administration
Pools 2,022 3 � � 2,022 3
Government Sponsored
Enterprise mortgage-backed
securities 19,003 248 986 2 19,989 250
Non-agency mortgage-backed
securities � � 11,867 1,709 11,867 1,709
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Corporate bonds and other 827 171 2,029 926 2,856 1,097
State and local government � � � � � �

21,852 422 14,882 2,637 36,734 3,059
Held-to-maturity securities:
State and local government $ � $ � $ � $ � $ � $ �
Non-agency mortgage-backed
securities � � 30,775 3,444 30,775 3,444
Other � � 49 1 49 1

� � 30,824 3,445 30,824 3,445
Total $ 21,852 $ 422 $ 45,706 $ 6,082 $ 67,558 $ 6,504
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Note 4�Investment Securities - continued

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
December 31, 2009
(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss

Available-for-sale securities:
US Treasury and Government
sponsored enterprises $ 1,486 $ 14 $ � $ � $ 1,486 $ 14
Small Business Administration
pools 3,430 20 � � 3,430 20
Government Sponsored
Enterprise mortgage-backed
securities 16,577 142 � � 16,577 142
Non-agency mortgage-backed
securities 472 130 7,880 831 8,352 961
Corporate bonds and other 2,033 247 8,191 2,202 10,224 2,449
State and local government 3,626 50 � � 3,626 50

27,624 603 16,071 3,033 43,695 3,636
Held-to-maturity securities:
Non-agency mortgage-backed
securities 5,135 1,364 35,882 4,452 41,017 5,816
Other 57 3 � � 57 3

5,192 1,367 35,882 4,452 41,074 5,819
Total $ 32,816 $ 1,970 $ 51,953 $ 7,485 $ 84,769 $ 9,455

Government Sponsored Enterprise, Mortgage-Backed Securities: Beginning in 2008 and continuing through 2009 and into the first nine
months of 2010, the bond markets and many institutional holders of bonds have come under a great deal of stress partially as a result of
increasing delinquencies in the sub-prime mortgage lending market. At September 30, 2010, the Bank owns mortgage-backed securities (MBSs)
including collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) with a book value of $64.9 million and approximate fair value of $65.7 million issued by
government sponsored entities (GSEs). Current economic conditions have impacted MBSs issued by GSEs such as GNMA, FHLMC and
FNMA. These entities have experienced increasing delinquencies in the underlying loans that make up the MBSs and CMOs. As of
September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, all of the MBSs issued by GSEs are classified as �Available for Sale�. Unrealized losses on these
investments are not considered to be �other than temporary� and we have the intent and ability to hold these until they mature or recover the
current book value. The contractual cash flows of the investments are guaranteed by the GSE. Accordingly, it is expected that the securities
would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost of the Company�s investment. Because the Company has the ability and intent to hold
these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider the investments to be
other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2010.

Non-agency mortgage �backed securities: The Company also holds private label mortgage-backed securities (PLMBSs) including CMOs at
September 30, 2010 with an amortized cost of $55.4 million and approximate fair value of $51.0 million. Although these are not classified as
sub-prime obligations or considered the �high risk� tranches, the majority of �structured� investments within all credit markets have been impacted
by volatility and credit concerns and economic stresses throughout 2008 and continuing through 2009 and into the first nine months of 2010.
The result has been that the market for these investments has become less liquid and the spread as compared to alternative investments has
widened dramatically. During the second quarter of 2008, the Company implemented a leverage strategy whereby we acquired approximately
$63.2 million in certain non-agency MBSs and CMOs. All of the mortgage assets acquired in this transaction were classified as prime or ALT-A
securities and represented the senior or super senior tranches of the securities. The assets acquired as part of this strategy were classified as
held-to-maturity in the investment portfolio. Due to the significant spreads on these securities, they were all purchased at discounts. A detailed
analysis of each of the CMO pools included in this leverage transaction as well as privately held CMOs held previously in the available-for-sale
portfolio have been analyzed by reviewing underlying loan delinquencies, collateral value and resulting credit support. These securities have
continued to experience increasing delinquencies in the underlying loans that make up the MBSs and CMOs. Management monitors each of
these pools on a quarterly basis to identify any deterioration in the credit quality, collateral values and credit support underlying the investments.
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Note 4�Investment Securities - continued

As of September 30, 2010, the Company has identified nine PLMBS with a fair value of $9.7 million that it considers
other-than-temporarily-impaired.  As prescribed by FASB ASC 320-10-65, the Company has recognized impairment charges in earnings for the
amounts related to credit losses and amounts related to non-credit losses have been recognized in other comprehensive income.  Credit losses are
estimated by projecting the expected cash flows estimating prepayment speeds, increasing defaults and collateral loss severities.  The credit loss
portion of the impairment charge represents the difference between the present value of the expected cash flows and the amortized cost basis of
the securities.   The Company does not intend to sell these securities and it is more likely than not that the Company will not be required to sell
these securities before recovery of its amortized cost.

It is expected that the PLMBS portfolio will not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost of the Company�s investment. Because the
Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, the Company does not
consider the remaining balance of these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2010.

The following table summarizes as of September 30, 2010 the number of CUSIPs, par value, carrying value and fair value of the non-agency
mortgage-backed/CMOs securities by credit rating. The credit rating reflects the lowest credit rating by any major rating agency.  All
non-agency mortgage-backed /CMO securities are in the super senior or senior tranche.

(Dollars in thousands)

Credit
Rating

Number
of

CUSIPs
Par

Value
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value
AAA 16 $ 8,069 $ 7,456 $ 7,589
AA- 1 4,133 3,962 3,955
A1 1 3,630 3,400 3,629
A 1 475 475 450

Baa1 1 535 368 446
Baa2 1 265 265 263

Below
Investment

Grade 21 43,700 39,463 34,619
Total 42 $ 60,807 $ 55,389 $ 50,951

Corporate Bonds: The Company�s unrealized loss on investments in corporate bonds relates to bonds with five different issuers. The economic
conditions throughout 2008, 2009 and 2010 have had a significant impact on all corporate debt obligations. As a result, the spreads on all of the
securities have widened dramatically and the liquidity of many of these investments has been negatively impacted. Each of these bonds is rated
BBB (investment grade) or better with the exception of three bonds downgraded below investment grade as of September 30, 2010. The first is
rated C by Fitch and Ca by Moody and is a preferred term security with a par value of $2.0 million, book value of $1.5 million and fair value of
$649,000 (PRETSL XIII B class).  During the nine months ended September 30, 2010, the Company identified this bond as
other-than-temporarily-impaired and recognized an impairment charge for the credit component in earnings of $505,000.  The second bond was
downgraded in 2009 and is a collateralized debt obligation (CDO ACE 2005-15 3A), rated CCC- by S&P, with a carrying value of $998,000 and
fair value of $905,000. This bond matures on December 20, 2010, and it is anticipated that we will receive the par value of the bond at maturity. 
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The third bond is rated Ba1 by Moody and BBB- S&P (SLMA O) with a carrying value of $998,000 and a fair value of $827,000 and matures in
July 2014.  All of the corporate bonds held by the Company are reviewed on a quarterly basis to identify downgrades by rating agencies as well
as deterioration of the underlying collateral or the issuer�s ability to service the debt obligation. Because the Company has the ability and it is
more likely than not the Company can hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, the Company does not
consider the investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2010, except to the extent OTTI has been previously
recognized on the PRETSL XIII noted above.
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Note 4�Investment Securities - continued

Small Business Administration Pools: These pools are guaranteed pass-thru with the full faith and credit of the United States government.
 Because the Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity, the Company
does not consider the investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2010.

State and Local Governments and Other: The unrealized losses on these investments are attributable to increases in interest rates, rather than
credit quality. Because the Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity,
the Company does not consider the investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2010.

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities at September 30, 2010, by contractual maturity, follow. Expected maturities differ
from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay the obligations with or without prepayment penalties. 
Mortgage-backed securities are based on average life at estimated prepayment speeds.

Held-to-maturity Available-for-sale

(Dollars in thousands)
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value
Amortized

Cost
Fair

Value
Due in one year or less $ 2,635 $ 2,686 $ 25,555 $ 24,294
Due after one year through five years 14,201 13,802 52,810 52,067
Due after five years through ten years 18,191 16,610 52,533 52,379
Due after ten years 7,451 6,722 22,989 25,103

$ 42,478 $ 39,820 $ 153,887 $ 153,843

Note 5 - Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that could impact the accounting, reporting, and or disclosure of financial
information by the Company.

In March 2010, guidance related to derivatives and hedging was amended to exempt embedded credit derivative features related to the transfer
of credit risk from potential bifurcation and separate accounting.  Embedded features related to other types of risk and other embedded credit
derivative features are not exempt from potential bifurcation and separate accounting.  The amendments were effective for the Company on July
1, 2010.  These amendments will have no impact on the financial statements.

Income Tax guidance was amended in April 2010 to reflect an SEC Staff Announcement after the President signed the Health Care and
Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 on March 30, 2010, which amended the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act signed on March 23,
2010.   According to the announcement, although the bills were signed on separate dates, regulatory bodies would not object if the two Acts
were considered together for accounting purposes. This view is based on the SEC staff�s understanding that the two Acts together represent the
current health care reforms as passed by Congress and signed by the President.  The amendment had no impact on the financial statements.
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Stock compensation guidance was updated in April 2010 to address the classification of employee share-based payment awards with exercise
prices dominated in the currency of a market in which a substantial portion of the entity�s equity securities trade.  The guidance states that these
awards should not be considered to contain a condition that is not a market, performance, or service condition. Share based payments that
contain conditions related to market, performance and service must be recorded as liabilities.  These awards should not be classified as liabilities
if they otherwise qualify to be classified as equity.  The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2010.  The Company does not expect the update to have an impact on the financial statements.

The insurance portion of the Financial Services Topic of the ASC was amended in April 2010 to address accounting for separate account
interests.  The update provides that separate account interests held for the benefit of policy holders should not be considered to be the insurer�s
interests in an investment and should not be combined with its general account interests when assessing this investment for consolidation.  For
the purpose of evaluating whether the retention of specialized accounting for investments in consolidation is appropriate, a separate account
arrangement should be considered a subsidiary.  The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods
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Note 5 - Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - continued

within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect the guidance to have
any impact on the financial statements.

In April 2010, guidance was issued related to accounting for acquired troubled loans that are subsequently modified.    The guidance provides
that if these loans meet the criteria to be accounted for within a pool, modifications to one or more of these loans does not result in the removal
of the modified loan from the pool even if the modification would otherwise be considered a troubled debt restructuring. The pool of assets in
which the loan is included will continue to be considered for impairment.  The amendments do not apply to loans not meeting the criteria to be
accounted for within a pool. These amendments are effective for modifications of loans accounted for within pools occurring in the first interim
or annual period ending on or after July 15, 2010. These amendments had no impact on the financial statements.

In July 2010, the Receivables topic of the ASC was amended to require expanded disclosures related to a company�s allowance for credit losses
and the credit quality of its financing receivables. The amendments will require the allowance disclosures to be provided on a disaggregated
basis.  The Company is required to begin to comply with the disclosures in its financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the �Dodd-Frank Act�),
which significantly changes the regulation of financial institutions and the financial services industry.  The Dodd-Frank Act includes several
provisions that will affect how community banks, thrifts, and small bank and thrift holding companies will be regulated in the future.  Among
other things, these provisions abolish the Office of Thrift Supervision and transfer its functions to the other federal banking agencies, relax rules
regarding interstate branching, allow financial institutions to pay interest on business checking accounts, change the scope of federal deposit
insurance coverage, and impose new capital requirements on bank and thrift holding companies.  The Dodd-Frank Act also establishes the
Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection as an independent entity within the Federal Reserve, which will be given the authority to promulgate
consumer protection regulations applicable to all entities offering consumer financial services or products, including banks.  Additionally, the
Dodd-Frank Act includes a series of provisions covering mortgage loan origination standards affecting originator compensation, minimum
repayment standards, and pre-payments.  Management is actively reviewing the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act and assessing its probable
impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

In August 2010, two updates were issued to amend various SEC rules and schedules pursuant to Release No. 33-9026: Technical Amendments
to Rules, Forms, Schedules and Codification of Financial Reporting Policies and based on the issuance of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin 112. 
The amendments related primarily to business combinations and removed references to �minority interest� and added references to �controlling� and
�noncontrolling interests(s)�.  The updates were effective upon issuance but had no impact on the Company�s financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company�s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 6 � Fair Value of Financial Instruments
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FASB ASC 825-10-50 �Disclosure about Fair Value of Financial Instruments�, requires the company to disclose estimated fair values for its
financial instruments.  Fair value estimates, methods, and assumptions are set forth below.

Cash and short term investments - The carrying amount of these financial instruments (cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and
securities purchased under agreements to resell) approximates fair value.  All mature within 90 days and do not present unanticipated credit
concerns.

Investment Securities - Fair values are based on quoted market prices, where available.  If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are
based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Loans - The fair value of loans are estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made
to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.  As discount rates are based on current loan rates as well as
management estimates, the fair values presented may not be indicative of the value negotiated in an actual sale.
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Note 6 � Fair Value of Financial Instruments-continued

Accrued Interest Receivable - The fair value approximates the carrying value.

Interest rate cap/floor - The fair value approximates the carrying value.

Deposits - The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and money market accounts is the amount payable on demand at the reporting
date.  The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposits is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using rates currently offered for
deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances - Fair value is estimated based on discounted cash flows using current market rates for borrowings with
similar terms.

Short Term Borrowings - The carrying value of short term borrowings (securities sold under agreements to repurchase and demand notes to the
U.S. Treasury) approximates fair value.

Junior Subordinated Debentures - The fair values of junior subordinated debentures is estimated by using discounted cash flow analyses based
on incremental borrowing rates for similar types of instruments.

Accrued Interest Payable - The fair value approximates the carrying value.

Commitments to Extend Credit - The fair value of these commitments is immaterial because their underlying interest rates approximate market.

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the company�s financial instruments are as follows:

September 30, 2010 December 31, 2009

(Dollars in thousands)

Carrying
 Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Financial Assets:
Cash and short term investments $ 31,852 $ 31,852 $ 20,844 $ 20,844

Held-to-maturity securities 42,478 39,820 56,104 49,092
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Available-for-sale securities 153,843 153,843 131,836 131,836
Other investments, at cost 6,984 7,390 7,904 7,904
Loans receivable 329,713 324,628 344,187 340,505
Allowance for loan losses 4,841 � 4,854 �
Net loans 324,872 324,628 339,333 340,505
Accrued interest 2,094 2,094 2,200 2,200

Interest rate cap/floor/swap (923) (923) (535) (535)

Financial liabilities:

Non-interest bearing demand $ 76,252 $ 76,252 $ 72,656 $ 72,656
NOW and money market accounts 119,371 119,371 104,659 104,659
Savings 31,022 31,022 25,757 25,757
Time deposits 234,986 238,372 246,504 248,473
Total deposits 461,631 465,017 449,576 451,545
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 68,826 76,150 73,326 77,738
Short term borrowings 16,003 16,003 20,840 20,840

Junior subordinated debentures 15,464 15,464 15,464 15,463
Accrued interest payable 2,408 2,408 2,219 2,219

Off-Balance Sheet Financial
Instruments:
Commitments to extend credit 44,105 44,105 44,033 44,033
Letters of Credit 912 912 984 984
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Note 7 � Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.  Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide
evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose after that date.  Management has reviewed events occurring
through the date the financial statements were available to be issued and no subsequent events occurred requiring accrual or disclosure.
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This report contains statements which constitute �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  Forward-looking statements may relate to, among other matters, the financial
condition, results of operations, plans, objectives, future performance, and business of our Company.  Forward-looking statements are based on
many assumptions and estimates and are not guarantees of future performance. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in
any forward-looking statements, as they will depend on many factors about which we are unsure, including many factors which are beyond our
control. The words �may,� �would,� �could,� �should,� �will,� �expect,� �anticipate,� �predict,� �project,� �potential,� �continue,� �assume,� �believe,� �intend,� �plan,�
�forecast,� �goal,� and �estimate,� as well as similar expressions, are meant to identify such forward-looking statements.  Potential risks and
uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in our forward-looking statements include, without
limitation, those described under the heading �Risk Factors� in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�) and the following:

• increases in competitive pressure in the banking and financial services industries;

• our ability to comply with the terms of the formal written agreement between the Bank and the OCC within the timeframes specified;

• restrictions or conditions imposed by our regulators on our operations may make it more difficult for us to achieve our goals;

• changes in the interest rate environment which could reduce anticipated or actual margins;

• changes in political conditions or the legislative or regulatory environment, including the effect of recent financial reform legislation
on the banking industry;

• reduced earnings due to higher credit losses generally and specifically potentially because losses in our real estate loan portfolio may
be greater than expected due to economic factors, including declining real estate values, increasing interest rates, increasing unemployment, or
changes in payment behavior or other factors;

• high concentrations of real estate-based loans collateralized by real estate in a weak commercial real estate market;

• general economic conditions, either nationally or regionally and especially in our primary service area, being less favorable than
expected resulting in, among other things, a deterioration in credit quality;

• changes occurring in business conditions and inflation;

• changes in technology;

• changes in deposit flows;

• the adequacy of our level of allowance for loan loss;

• the rate of delinquencies and amounts of loans charged-off;

• the rates of loan growth;
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• adverse changes in asset quality and resulting credit risk-related losses and expenses;

• changes in monetary and tax policies;

• loss of consumer confidence and economic disruptions resulting from terrorist activities or other military actions;

• changes in the securities markets; and

• other risks and uncertainties detailed from time to time in our filings with the SEC.

These risks are exacerbated by the developments over the last three years in national and international financial markets, and we are unable to
predict what effect these uncertain market conditions will continue to have on our Company.  Beginning in 2008 and continuing through the first
nine months of 2010, the capital and credit markets experienced unprecedented levels of extended volatility and disruption.  There can be no
assurance that these unprecedented developments will not continue to materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

All forward-looking statements in this report are based on information available to us as of the date of this report.  Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee you that these expectations will be achieved.  We
undertake no obligation to publicly update or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events, or otherwise.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events, or otherwise.
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GAAP Reconciliation and Explanation

This Form 10-Q contains non-GAAP financial measures determined by methods other than in accordance with GAAP.  Such non-GAAP
financial measures include, among others the following:  operating income, operating earning per diluted share available to common
shareholders and operating expense.  Management uses these non-GAAP financial measures because it believes it is useful for evaluating our
operations and performance over a period of time. Management believes it provides users of our financial information with a meaningful
measure for assessing our financial results and credit trends, as well as comparison to financial results of prior periods.  These non-GAAP
financial measures should not be considered as a substitute for operating results determined in accordance with GAAP and may not be
comparable to other similarly titled measures used by other companies.  A reconciliation of these non-GAAP measures to GAAP is included
below on pages 27 and 28 of this Form 10-Q.

Overview

The following discussion describes our results of operations for the nine months and three months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to the
nine months and three months ended September 30, 2009, and also analyzes our financial condition as of September 30, 2010 as compared to
December 31, 2009.  Like most community banks, we derive most of our income from interest we receive on our loans and investments.  Our
primary source of funds for making these loans and investments is our deposits, on which we pay interest. Consequently, one of the key
measures of our success is our amount of net interest income, or the difference between the income on our interest-earning assets, such as loans
and investments, and the expense on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits.  Another key measure is the spread between the yield we
earn on these interest-earning assets and the rate we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities.

There are risks inherent in all loans, so we maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb probable losses on existing loans that may become
uncollectible. We establish and maintain this allowance by charging a provision for loan losses against our operating earnings. In the following
section we have included a discussion of this process, as well as several tables describing our allowance for loan losses and the allocation of this
allowance among our various categories of loans.

In addition to earning interest on our loans and investments, we earn income through fees and other expenses we charge to our customers.  We
describe the various components of this non-interest income, as well as our non-interest expense, in the following discussion.

The following discussion and analysis also identifies significant factors that have affected our financial position and operating results during the
periods included in the accompanying financial statements.  We encourage you to read this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the
financial statements and the related notes and the other statistical information also included in this report.

Critical Accounting Policies

We have adopted various accounting policies that govern the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and
with general practices within the banking industry in the preparation of our financial statements. Our significant accounting policies are
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described in the footnotes to our unaudited consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2010 and our notes included in the
consolidated financial statements in our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC.

Certain accounting policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by us that have a material impact on the carrying value of certain
assets and liabilities. We consider these accounting policies to be critical accounting policies. The judgment and assumptions we use are based
on historical experience and other factors, which we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Because of the nature of the judgment and
assumptions we make, actual results could differ from these judgments and estimates that could have a material impact on the carrying values of
our assets and liabilities and our results of operations.

We believe the allowance for loan losses is the critical accounting policy that requires the most significant judgment and estimates used in
preparation of our consolidated financial statements. Some of the more critical judgments supporting the amount of our allowance for loan losses
include judgments about the credit worthiness of borrowers, the estimated value of the underlying collateral, the assumptions about cash flow,
determination of loss factors for
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estimating credit losses, the impact of current events, and conditions, and other factors impacting the level of probable inherent losses. Under
different conditions or using different assumptions, the actual amount of credit losses incurred by us may be different from management�s
estimates provided in our consolidated financial statements. Refer to the portion of this discussion that addresses our allowance for loan losses
for a more complete discussion of our processes and methodology for determining our allowance for loan losses.

Recent Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives to Address Financial and Economic Crises.

The Congress, Treasury and the federal banking regulators, including the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the �FDIC�), have taken broad
action since early September 2008 to address volatility in the U.S. banking system.

In October 2008, the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (�EESA�) was enacted. The EESA authorizes the Treasury to purchase from
financial institutions and their holding companies up to $700 billion in mortgage loans, mortgage-related securities and certain other financial
instruments, including debt and equity securities issued by financial institutions and their holding companies in a Troubled Asset Relief Program
(�TARP�).  The purpose of TARP is to restore confidence and stability to the U.S. banking system and to encourage financial institutions to
increase their lending to customers and to each other.  The Treasury has allocated $250 billion towards the TARP Capital Purchase Program
(�CPP�).  Under the CPP, the Treasury will purchase debt or equity securities from participating institutions.  The TARP also will include direct
purchases or guarantees of troubled assets of financial institutions. Participants in the CPP are subject to executive compensation limits and are
encouraged to expand their lending and mortgage loan modifications.

On November 21, 2008 as part of the TARP CPP, we entered into a Letter Agreement and Securities Purchase Agreement (collectively, the �CPP
Purchase Agreement�) with the Treasury, pursuant to which we sold (i) 11,350 shares of our Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock,
Series T (the �Series T Preferred Stock�) and (ii) a warrant (the �CPP Warrant�) to purchase 195,915 shares of our common stock for an aggregate
purchase price of $11,350,000 in cash.

The Series T Preferred Stock qualifies as Tier 1 capital and is entitled to cumulative dividends at a rate of 5% per annum for the first five years,
and 9% per annum thereafter.  We must consult with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the �OCC�) before we may redeem the Series
T Preferred Stock but, contrary to the original restrictions in the EESA, will not necessarily be required to raise additional equity capital in order
to redeem this stock.  The CPP Warrant has a 10-year term and is immediately exercisable upon its issuance, with an exercise price, subject to
anti-dilution adjustments, equal to $8.69 per share of the common stock. Please see the Form 8-K we filed with the SEC on November 25, 2008,
for additional information about the Series T Preferred Stock and the CPP Warrant.

EESA also increased FDIC deposit insurance on most accounts from $100,000 to $250,000.  The increased coverage was subsequently extended
through December 31, 2013.

Following a systemic risk determination, the FDIC established the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (the �TLGP�) on October 14, 2008. 
The TLGP includes the Transaction Account Guarantee Program (the �TAGP�), which provides unlimited deposit insurance coverage through
December 31, 2010 for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts (typically business checking accounts) and certain funds swept into
noninterest-bearing savings accounts.  Institutions participating in the TLGP pay a 10 basis points fee (annualized) on the balance of each
covered account in excess of $250,000, while the extra deposit insurance is in place.  The TLGP also includes the Debt Guarantee Program
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(�DGP�), under which the FDIC guarantees certain senior unsecured debt of FDIC-insured institutions and their holding companies.  The
unsecured debt must be issued on or after October 14, 2008 and not later than June 30, 2009, and the guarantee is effective through the earlier of
the maturity date or June 30, 2012.  On March 17, 2009, the FDIC adopted an interim rule that extends the DGP and imposes surcharges on
existing rates for certain debt issuances.  This extension allows institutions that have issued guaranteed debt before April 1, 2009 to issue
guaranteed debt during the extended issuance period that ends on October 31, 2009. For such institutions, the guarantee on debt issued on or
after April 1, 2009, will expire no later than December 31, 2012.  The DGP coverage limit is generally 125% of the eligible entity�s eligible debt
outstanding on September 30, 2008 and scheduled to mature on or before June 30, 2009 or, for certain insured institutions, 2% of their liabilities
as of September 30, 2008.  Depending on the term of the debt maturity, the nonrefundable DGP fee ranges from 60 to 110 basis points
(annualized) for covered debt outstanding until the earlier of maturity or June 30, 2012 and 75 to 125 basis points (annualized) for covered debt
outstanding until after June 30, 2012.  The TAGP and DGP are in effect for all eligible
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entities, unless the entity opted out on or before December 5, 2008.   We are participating in the TAGP, but opted out of the DGP.

On February 10, 2009, the Treasury announced the Financial Stability Plan, which earmarked $350 billion of the TARP funds authorized under
EESA. Among other things, the Financial Stability Plan includes:

• A capital assistance program that invested in mandatory convertible preferred stock of certain qualifying institutions determined on a
basis and through a process similar to the Capital Purchase Program;

• A consumer and business lending initiative to fund new consumer loans, small business loans and commercial mortgage asset-backed
securities issuances;

• A public-private investment fund that is intended to leverage public and private capital with public financing to purchase up to $500
billion to $1 trillion of legacy �toxic assets� from financial institutions; and

• Assistance for homeowners by providing up to $75 billion to reduce mortgage payments and interest rates and establishing loan
modification guidelines for government and private programs.

On February 17, 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (the �Recovery Act�) was signed into law in an effort to, among other
things, create jobs and stimulate growth in the United States economy.  The Recovery Act specifies appropriations of approximately $787 billion
for a wide range of Federal programs and will increase or extend certain benefits payable under the Medicaid, unemployment compensation, and
nutrition assistance programs.  The Recovery Act also reduces individual and corporate income tax collections and makes a variety of other
changes to tax laws.  The Recovery Act also imposes certain limitations on compensation paid by participants in the TARP.

On March 23, 2009, the Treasury, in conjunction with the FDIC and the Federal Reserve, announced the Public-Private Partnership Investment
Program for Legacy Assets which consists of two separate plans, addressing two distinct asset groups:

• The first plan is the Legacy Loan Program, which has a primary purpose to facilitate the sale of troubled mortgage loans by eligible
institutions, including FDIC-insured federal or state banks and savings associations. Eligible assets are not strictly limited to loans; however,
what constitutes an eligible asset will be determined by participating banks, their primary regulators, the FDIC and the Treasury. Under the
Legacy Loan Program, the FDIC has sold certain troubled assets out of an FDIC receivership in two separate transactions relating to the failed
Illinois bank, Corus Bank, NA, and the failed Texas bank, Franklin Bank, S.S.B. These transactions were completed in September 2009 and
October 2009, respectively.

Edgar Filing: FIRST COMMUNITY CORP /SC/ - Form 10-Q

46



• The second plan is the Securities Program, which is administered by the Treasury and involves the creation of public-private
investment funds (�PPIFs�) to target investments in eligible residential mortgage-backed securities and commercial mortgage-backed securities
issued before 2009 that originally were rated AAA or the equivalent by two or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations,
without regard to rating enhancements (collectively, �Legacy Securities�). Legacy Securities must be directly secured by actual mortgage loans,
leases or other assets, and may be purchased only from financial institutions that meet TARP eligibility requirements. The U.S. Treasury
received over 100 unique applications to participate in the Legacy Securities PPIP and in July 2009 selected nine PPIF managers.  As of
September 30, 2010, the PPIFs had completed their fundraising and have closed on approximately $7.4 billion of private sector equity capital,
which was matched 100 percent by Treasury, representing $14.7 billion of total equity capital. The U.S. Treasury has also provided $14.7 billion
of debt capital, representing $29.4 billion of total purchasing power. As of September 30, 2010, PPIFs have drawn-down approximately $18.6
billion of total capital which has been invested in eligible assets and cash equivalents pending investment.

On May 22, 2009, the FDIC levied a one-time special assessment on all banks which was paid on September 30, 2009.

On November 12, 2009, the FDIC issued a final rule to require banks to prepay their estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth
quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010, 2011 and 2012 and to increase assessment rates effective on January 1, 2011.
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On July 21, 2010, the U.S. President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, a
comprehensive regulatory framework that will affect every financial institution in the U.S.  Among its other impacts, it made permanent the
increase in FDIC deposit insurance on most accounts from $100,000 to $250,000.  U.S. financial regulators will begin the rulemaking process
over the next 6 to 18 months which will set the parameters of the new regulatory framework and provide a clearer understanding of the
legislation�s effect on banks.

On July 21, 2010, the U.S. President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act, a comprehensive regulatory framework that will affect every financial
institution in the U.S.    The Dodd-Frank Act includes, among other measures, changes to the deposit insurance and financial regulatory systems,
enhanced bank capital requirements, and provisions designed to protect consumers in financial transactions.  The Dodd-Frank Act also alters
certain corporate governance matters affecting public companies.  Over the next 6 to 18 months, regulatory agencies will implement new
regulations which will establish the parameters of the new regulatory framework and provide a clearer understanding of the legislation�s effect on
banks.

Internationally, both the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (the �Basel Committee�) and the Financial Stability Board (established in
April 2009 by the Group of Twenty (�G-20�) Finance Ministers and Central Bank Governors to take action to strengthen regulation and
supervision of the financial system with greater international consistency, cooperation, and transparency) have committed to raise capital
standards and liquidity buffers within the banking system (�Basel III�).  On September 12, 2010, the Group of Governors and Heads of
Supervision agreed to the calibration and phase-in of the Basel III minimum capital requirements (raising the minimum Tier 1 common equity
ratio to 4.5% and minimum Tier 1 equity ratio to 6.0%, with full implementation by January 2015) and introducing a capital conservation buffer
of common equity of an additional 2.5% with implementation by January 2019.  The U.S. federal banking agencies support this agreement.  The
Basel Committee is expected to finalize the new capital and liquidity standard later this year and to present them for approval of the G-20
Finance Minister and Central Bank Governors in November 2010.

On September 27, 2010, the U.S. President signed into law the Small Business Jobs and Credit Act which, among other things, creates a $30
billion fund to provide capital for banks with assets under $10 billion to increase their small-business lending. The U.S. Treasury is currently
working to finalize terms of participation for this fund.

Although it is likely that further regulatory actions will arise as the Federal government attempts to address the economic situation, we cannot
predict the effect that fiscal or monetary policies, economic control, or new federal or state legislation may have on our business and earnings in
the future.

Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDIC.   The deposits at our Bank are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance
Fund of the FDIC.  The Deposit Insurance Fund is the successor to the Bank Insurance Fund and the Savings Association Insurance Fund, which
were merged effective March 31, 2006.  As insurer, the FDIC imposes deposit insurance premiums and is authorized to conduct examinations of
and to require reporting by FDIC insured institutions.  It also may prohibit any FDIC insured institution from engaging in any activity the FDIC
determines by regulation or order to pose a serious risk to the insurance fund.  The FDIC also has the authority to initiate enforcement actions
against savings institutions, after giving the Office of Thrift Supervision an opportunity to take such action, and may terminate the deposit
insurance if it determines that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices or is in an unsafe or unsound condition.

Under regulations effective January 1, 2007, the FDIC adopted a new risk-based premium system that provides for quarterly assessments based
on an insured institution�s ranking in one of four risk categories based upon supervisory and capital evaluations.   For deposits held as of
March 31, 2010, institutions are assessed at annual rates ranging from 12 to 50 basis points, depending on each institution�s risk of default as
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measured by regulatory capital ratios and other supervisory measures.   Effective April 1, 2009, assessments take into account each institution�s
reliance on secured liabilities and brokered deposits.  This resulted in assessments ranging from 7 to 77.5 basis points.  In May 2009, the FDIC
issued a final rule which levied a special assessment applicable to all insured depository institutions totaling 5 basis points of each institution�s
total assets less Tier 1 capital as of June 30, 2009, not to exceed 10 basis points of domestic deposits.  This special assessment was part of the
FDIC�s efforts to rebuild the Deposit Insurance Fund.  We paid this onetime special assessment in the amount of $300 thousand to the FDIC at
the end of the third quarter 2009.

In November 2009, the FDIC issued a rule that required all insured depository institutions, with limited exceptions, to prepay their estimated
quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010, 2011 and 2012.  The FDIC also adopted a uniform three-basis
point increase in assessment rates effective on
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January 1, 2011.  In December 2009, we paid $ 2.9 million in prepaid risk-based assessments.  The remaining $2.3 million in prepaid deposit
insurance is included in accrued interest receivable and other assets in the accompanying balance sheet as of September 30, 2010.

FDIC insured institutions are required to pay a Financing Corporation assessment, in order to fund the interest on bonds issued to resolve thrift
failures in the 1980s.  For the first quarter of 2010, the Financing Corporation assessment equaled 1.14 basis points for domestic deposits.  These
assessments, which may be revised based upon the level of deposits, will continue until the bonds mature in the years 2017 through 2019.

The FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any insured depository institution, including the Bank, if it determines after a hearing that the
institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable
law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC or the OCC.  It also may suspend deposit insurance temporarily during the hearing
process for the permanent termination of insurance, if the institution has no tangible capital.  If insurance of accounts is terminated, the accounts
at the institution at the time of the termination, less subsequent withdrawals, shall continue to be insured for a period of six months to two years,
as determined by the FDIC.  Management of the Bank is not aware of any practice, condition or violation that might lead to termination of the
Bank�s deposit insurance.

Comparison of Results of Operations for Nine months Ended September 30, 2010 to the Nine months Ended September 30, 2009

Net Income

Our net income available to common shareholders for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 was $960,000 or $.29 diluted earnings per
common share, as compared to a net loss for common shareholders of $(26.6) million, or $(8.17) diluted loss per common share, for the nine
months ended September 30, 2009. During the third quarter of 2009, we recognized a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $27.8 million, or
$8.51 per diluted share, that represented the complete write-off of our goodwill intangible asset.  Goodwill arises from business acquisitions and
represents the value attributable to unidentifiable intangible elements in the business acquired.  We annually conducted a test to assess fair value
in the current economic environment, as compared to the value determined at the time of acquisition.  The third quarter 2009 analysis and
valuation process resulted in our determination that goodwill was impaired.  This determination was reflective of the impact of the then current
and ongoing economic environment and its affect on the banking industry and our Company.  The calculation of fair value as part of the
goodwill impairment test was subject to significant management judgment and estimates.  Industry-wide, market capitalization and acquisition
multiples had significantly declined since 2004 and 2006, which are the dates of our acquisitions of Dutchfork Bankshares and DeKalb
Bancshares, respectively.  Our Company had experienced the same trend, with a decline in its market price per share and an extended period of
time trading at a discount to book value and tangible book value.  The non-cash charge is the accounting recognition of those events.  Given the
non-cash nature of a goodwill charge, this non-interest expense item had no adverse impact upon our regulatory capital, liquidity position,
operating performance or our prospects for future earnings.  There was no tax benefit recognized in 2009 as a result of this goodwill impairment
charge.

Excluding the impairment charge, operating net income available to shareholders for the nine months and three months ended September 30,
2009 was $1.2 million ($0.36 per diluted share) and $511,000 ($0.16 per diluted share), respectively.  This compares to the previously
mentioned net income available to common shareholders for the nine months and three months ended September 30, 2010 of $960,000 ($0.29
diluted earnings per common share) and $394,000 ($0.07 diluted earnings per common share).  The following table reconciles net income as
reported under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to the previously referred to operating net income available to shareholders
(non-GAAP measure) for the nine month and three month period ended September 30, 2009:
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(Dollars in thousands)
Nine months ended
September 30, 2009

Three months ended
September 30, 2009

Net income (loss) as reported for GAAP $ (26,099) $ (27,085)
Preferred stock dividend 493 165
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders as reported for
GAAP (26,592) (27,250)
Impairment of goodwill 27,761 27,761
Operating income available to common shareholders (non-GAAP
measure) $ 1,169 $ 511
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Nine months ended
September 30, 2009

Three months ended
September 30, 2009

Net loss per common share as reported for GAAP $ (8.17) $ (8.35)
Impairment of goodwill (8.53) (8.51)
Operating income available to common shareholders (non-GAAP
measure) $ 0.36 $ 0.16

As previously stated, management uses these non-GAAP financial measures because it believes it is useful for evaluating our operations and
performance over a period of time.  During 2010, there were no adjustments between operating net income available to common shareholders
and GAAP net income available to common shareholders.  The decrease of $209,000 in operating net income, during the nine months of 2010 as
compared to the same period of 2009, was primarily a result of lower amounts reflected in non-interest income and increases in certain
non-interest expense amounts both of which are discussed in more detail below.    These negative factors were partially offset by a 24 basis point
improvement in our taxable equivalent net interest margin from 3.07% in 2009 to 3.31% in 2010.  In addition, we had a decrease in our
provision for loan losses of $692,000 from $2.1 million in the first nine months of 2009 as compared to $1.4 million in the same period of
2010.   Average earning assets were $555.4 million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2010 as compared to $575.3 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2009. The decrease in average earning assets was a result of prepaying approximately $27.0 million in Federal
Home Loan Bank advances late in the fourth quarter of 2009 as well as repaying $3.3 million in maturing advances in the first quarter of 2010.
Despite the decrease in earning assets, we realized an increase in net interest income of $542,000 in the first nine months of 2010 as compared to
the first nine months of 2009 as a result of the 24 basis point increase in our net interest margin.

Net Interest Income

Please refer to the table at the end of this Item 2 for the yield and rate data for interest-bearing balance sheet components during the nine-month
periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, along with average balances and the related interest income and interest expense amounts.

Net interest income was $13.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to $13.1 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009.  This increase was due to the increase in our net interest margin.  Net interest margin on a taxable equivalent basis
increased 24 basis points, from 3.07% at September 30, 2009 to 3.31% at September 30, 2010.   Yield on earning assets decreased by 39 basis
points in the first nine months of 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009. The yield on earning assets for the nine months ended
September 30, 2010 and 2009 was 5.02% and 5.41%, respectively.  The cost of interest-bearing liabilities during the first nine months of 2010
was 1.98% as compared to 2.66% in the same period of 2009, resulting in a 68 basis points decrease.  As a result of the ongoing recessionary
economic conditions during 2008, throughout 2009 and thus far in 2010, interest rates continue to remain at historically low levels.  There were
three primary contributors to the improvement in the net interest margin.  First, the repricing of time deposits have resulted in the cost of those
funds decreasing by 104 basis points during the first nine months of 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009.  Second, during the fourth
quarter of 2009, we prepaid $27.0 million in Federal Home Loan Bank advances which contributed to an 8 basis point decrease in cost of other
borrowed funds in the first nine months of 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009. Third, the percentage of non-interest bearing deposits
supporting our total funding sources increased from 11.7% in the first nine months of 2009 to 13.7% in the same period of 2010.

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

At September 30, 2010, the allowance for loan losses was $4.8 million, or 1.47% of total loans, as compared to $4.9 million, or 1.41% of total
loans, at December 31, 2009.  The provision for loan losses is made based on our assessment of general loan loss risk and asset quality.  The
allowance for loan losses represents an amount which we believe will be adequate to absorb probable losses on existing loans that may become
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uncollectible.  Our judgment as to the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on a number of assumptions about future events, which
we believe to be reasonable, but which may or may not prove to be accurate.  Our determination of the allowance for loan losses is based on
evaluations of the collectability of loans, including consideration of factors such as the balance of impaired loans, the quality, mix, and size of
our overall loan portfolio, the experience ability and depth of lending personnel, economic conditions (local and national) that may affect the
borrower�s ability to repay, the amount and quality of collateral securing the loans, our historical loan loss experience, and a review of specific
problem loans.  We also consider subjective issues such as changes in the lending policies and procedures, changes in the local/national
economy, changes in volume or type of credits, changes in volume/severity of problem loans, quality of
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loan review and board of director oversight, and concentrations of credit.  Periodically, we adjust the amount of the allowance based on
changing circumstances.  We charge recognized losses to the allowance and add subsequent recoveries back to the allowance for loan losses. 
We perform an analysis quarterly to assess the risk within the loan portfolio. The portfolio is segregated into similar risk components for which
historical loss ratios are calculated and adjusted for identified changes in current portfolio characteristics.  Historical loss ratios are calculated by
product type and by regulatory credit risk classification.  The allowance consists of an allocated and unallocated allowance.  The allocated
portion is determined by types and ratings of loans within the portfolio.  The unallocated portion of the allowance is established for losses that
exist in the remainder of the portfolio and compensates for uncertainty in estimating the loan losses.  There can be no assurance that charge-offs
of loans in future periods will not exceed the allowance for loan losses as estimated at any point in time or that provisions for loan losses will not
be significant to a particular accounting period.  The allowance is also subject to examination and testing for adequacy by regulatory agencies,
which may consider such factors as the methodology used to determine adequacy and the size of the allowance relative to that of peer
institutions.  Such regulatory agencies could require us to adjust our allowance based on information available to them at the time of their
examination.

The decrease in the provision for loan losses for the first nine months of 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009 is primarily a result of a
decrease in our loan production as well as a decrease in the balance of the overall portfolio during the first nine months of 2010. Real estate
values have been dramatically impacted during this economic downturn. Due to our loan portfolio consisting of a large percentage of real estate
secured loans, we, like most financial institutions, have experienced increasing delinquencies and problem loans.  In some cases, this downturn
has resulted in a significant impairment to the value of our collateral and our ability to sell the collateral upon foreclosure, and there is a risk that
this trend will continue.  The real estate collateral in each case provides an alternate source of repayment in the event of default by the borrower
and may deteriorate in value during the time the credit is extended.  If real estate values continue to decline, it is also more likely that we would
be required to increase our allowance for loan losses.  If during a period of reduced real estate values we are required to liquidate the property
collateralizing a loan to satisfy the debt or to increase the allowance for loan losses, it could materially reduce our profitability and adversely
affect our financial condition.

The effects of the slowing economy have resulted in some deterioration of our loan portfolio in general as evidenced by the increase in
non-performing assets from $8.3 million (1.37% of total assets) at December 31, 2009 to $13.4 million (2.19% of total assets) at September 30,
2010.  While we believe these ratios are favorable in comparison to current industry results, we continue to be concerned about the impact of this
economic environment on our customer base of local businesses and professionals.  There are 38 loans included in non-performing status
(non-accrual loans and loans past due 90 days and still accruing) totaling $6.0 million. The two largest are in the amounts of $1.4 million and
$851,000.  The first relationship in the amount of $1.4 million is a mortgage on a developed parking complex near the University of South
Carolina athletic complex, whereby 76 individual parking spaces are to be sold to individuals.  It is not anticipated that we will incur a material
loss if we are required to foreclose on the property in the future.  The second relationship in the amount of $851,000 is secured by a first lien on
a single family residential lot located on the coast of North Carolina.  The average balance of the remaining 36 loans is approximately $105,000,
and the majority of these loans are secured by first mortgage liens. At the time the loans are placed in non-accrual status we typically obtain an
updated evaluation and generally write the balance down to the fair value if the loan balance exceeds fair value.  At September 30, 2010, we had
two loans totaling $340,000 (0.10% of total loans) that were delinquent more than 90 days and still accruing interest, and 61 loans totaling $2.0
million (0.59% of total loans) that were delinquent 30 days to 89 days.

Our management continuously monitors non-performing, classified and past due loans, to identify deterioration regarding the condition of these
loans. We have identified four loan relationships in the amount of $1.6 million that are current as to principal and interest and not included in
non-performing assets that could represent potential problem loans. The relationships have previously been in delinquent status at various times
but subsequently been brought current.  These loans are on various investment properties and it is not anticipated that we would have a material
loss in the event we should subsequently foreclose on the properties.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

Nine months Ended
September 30,

(Dollars in thousands) 2010 2009

Average loans outstanding $ 339,140 $ 334,991
Loans outstanding at period end $ 329,713 $ 345,428
Non-performing assets:
Nonaccrual loans $ 5,652 $ 5,919
Loans 90 days past due still accruing 340 17
Foreclosed real estate 7,373 1,681
Total non-performing assets 13,365 $ 7,617

Beginning balance of allowance $ 4,854 $ 4,581
Loans charged-off:
Construction and development � 927
1-4 family residential mortgage 901 285
Multi-family residential � �
Non-residential real estate 222 69
Home equity 157 64
Commercial 92 683
Installment & credit card 109 166
Total loans charged-off 1,481 2,194
Recoveries:
1-4 family residential mortgage 42 6
Non-residential real estate 2 8
Home equity 6 4
Commercial 23 44
Installment & credit card 30 52
Total recoveries 103 114
Net loan charge offs 1,378 2,080
Provision for loan losses 1,365 2,057
Balance at period end $ 4,841 $ 4,558

Net charge -offs to average loans 0.41% 0.62%
Allowance as percent of total loans 1.47% 1.32%
Non-performing assets as % of total assets 2.19% 1.20%
Allowance as % of non-performing assets 36.22% 59.84%
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The following allocation of the allowance to specific components is not necessarily indicative of future losses or future allocations.  The entire
allowance is available to absorb losses in the portfolio.

Composition of the Allowance for Loan Losses

September 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
% of loans

in
% of

 loans in
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Category Amount Category
Commercial, Financial and
Agricultural $ 528 5.9% $ 634 6.6%
Real Estate � Construction 1,697 4.0% 1,331 5.8%
Real Estate Mortgage:
Commercial 1,344 65.3% 1,522 62.2%
Residential 272 14.4% 243 14.8%
Consumer 373 10.4% 133 10.6%
Unallocated 627 N/A 991 N/A
Total $ 4,841 100.0% $ 4,854 100.0%

Accrual of interest is discontinued on loans when management believes, after considering economic and business conditions and collection
efforts that a borrower�s financial condition is such that the collection of interest is doubtful.  A delinquent loan is generally placed in nonaccrual
status when it becomes 90 days or more past due.  At the time a loan is placed in nonaccrual status, all interest, which has been accrued on the
loan but remains unpaid is reversed and deducted from earnings as a reduction of reported interest income.  No additional interest is accrued on
the loan balance until the collection of both principal and interest becomes reasonably certain.

Non-interest Income and Non-interest Expense

Non-interest income during the first nine months of 2010 was $2.7 million compared to $3.7 million during the same period in 2009.  Deposit
service charges decreased $310,000.   Mortgage origination fees increased by $69,000 and investment advisory and commissions on the sale of
non-deposit investment products increased $79,000.  The decrease in deposit service charges results from a lower level of overdraft protection
fees due to a decrease in the number of items being presented on insufficient fund balances.  Changes to Regulation E that became effective
July 1, 2010 require that customers affirmatively opt in to our overdraft protection program.  To the extent customers who have utilized this
product do not opt in, this will reduce fees related to the program that result from ATM and point of sale transactions.   It is expected that this
will continue to adversely impact the fee income generated from this program in the short term.  The long term impact on this source of revenue
is not known at this time.  As previously reported, on July 21, 2010, the U.S. President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act.  The Dodd-Frank
Act calls for new limits on interchange transaction fees that banks receive from merchants via card networks like Visa, Inc. and MasterCard, Inc.
when a customer uses a debit card.  The results of this proposed legislation may impact our non-interest income from debit card transactions in
the future.  Mortgage origination fees increased primarily as a result of an increase in the level of refinancing activity in the third quarter of
2010.  Changes to underwriting and appraisal requirements established by FNMA and FHLMC as well as changes in regulatory environment
continue to impact the ability of individuals to qualify for loans.  The increase in investment advisory and commissions on sale of non-deposit
products is a result of our continued emphasis on this source of revenue.  In the nine months ended September 30, 2010, we had gains on the sale
of securities in the amount of $324,000 as compared to $654,000 in the comparable period of 2009.  During the second and third quarter of
2010, we restructured a portion of our available-for-sale investments. During the second quarter we sold a CDO (see Note 4 � Investment
Securities to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further information), and realized a loss in the amount of $1.7 million.  Approximately
$41.0 million in available-for-sale GSE bonds and MBSs were sold that realized a gain of approximately $1.7 million.  In the third quarter of
2010, we sold two corporate securities and certain non-taxable municipal securities and realized gains of $218,000.  The sales and resulting net
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gains during the nine months ended September 30, 2010 were primarily a result of our desire to restructure the portfolio to better position us for
a rising rate environment as well as investing in securities that have a lower regulatory risk weighting such as GNMA mortgage-backed
securities and SBA pools. The proceeds from the sale of certain agency mortgage backed securities in the nine months ended September 30,
2009 were primarily reinvested in other agency mortgage-backed securities (GNMA securities) with lower regulatory risk weightings and
slightly longer maturities.  As discussed below (see
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�Market Risk Management� section) we entered into a five year interest rate swap agreement on October 8, 2008.  The swap has a $10.0 million
notional amount and is adjusted to its fair value on a quarterly basis.  Due to continued declining interest rates during 2010 we recorded a loss on
the fair value in the amount of $644,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2010. This compares to a gain of $66,000 for the nine month
period ended September 30, 2009.  OTTI charges of $294,000 (credit component) on six private label mortgage backed securities and of
$505,000 on one pooled trust preferred security were recognized during the first nine months of 2010 (see Note 4 � Investment Securities to our
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information).   During the first nine months of 2009, we recognized aggregate OTTI in the amount
of $921,000 on five investments.  The first, in the amount of $510,000, was an equity investment in another financial institution that was closed
by the OCC and placed into receivership on May 1, 2009.  The charge of $510,000 represented the entire balance of the investment.  An
additional charge of $411,000 was taken on four private label mortgage backed securities. We engage a third party to obtain information about
structure and anticipated cash flows to assist us in evaluating and monitoring our private label mortgage backed securities portfolio (see Note 4
to financial statements to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further information).

Total non-interest expense, excluding the goodwill impairment in 2009, increased by $424,000, or 3.4%, during the first nine months of 2010, as
compared to the same period in 2009.  Salary and benefit expense increased $358,000 from $6.3 million in the first nine months of 2009 to $6.6
million in the comparable period of 2010.  This increase is primarily a result of normal salary adjustments made over the last 12 months as well
as a lower amount of deferred salary expense resulting from decreased loan originations during the first nine months of 2010 as compared to the
same period of 2009.  FDIC insurance assessments decreased $167,000 in the first nine months of 2010 as compared to the same period in
2009.   During the second quarter of 2009, the FDIC assessed a one-time special assessment on all insured institutions of 10 basis points.  This
special assessment amounted to $500,000 and was expensed in the second quarter of 2009. The FDIC assessment rate for the first nine months
of 2010 averaged approximately 19.5 basis points. The rate has increased to approximately 21.5 basis points for the remainder of 2010. The
recently passed financial institution reform legislation broadens the assessment base for calculation of the FDIC assessment.  The timing of this
change is not known but when implemented it is estimated that we will have reduced assessments in the amount of approximately $120,000
annually as compared to the existing assessment base.   In November 2009, all insured institutions with limited exceptions were required to
prepay insurance assessments for a three-year period.  Our prepayment made in December 2009 amounted to approximately $2.9 million.  At
September 30, 2010, the remaining prepaid insurance assessment amounted to $2.1 million and is included in �Other assets�.   Other real estate
expense increased to $536,000 during the first nine months of 2010 as compared to $138,000 in the same period of 2009.  This is a result of the
increased balance of other real estate owned and includes cost associated with foreclosure, force placed insurance coverage as well as property
taxes paid on prior year delinquent taxes on these properties.  Non-interest expense �Other Miscellaneous� decreased by $172,000 from $637,000
in the first nine months of 2009 to $465,000 in the first nine months of 2010.  This decrease resulted primarily from increased monitoring and
control over certain discretionary expenses as well as a reduction in charges to operating errors of approximately $57,000.

The following is a summary of the components of other non-interest expense:

Nine months ended
September 30,

(In thousands) 2010 2009
Data processing $ 309 $ 268
Supplies 109 166
Telephone 226 226
Correspondent services 52 27
Loss on limited partnership interest 89 89
Insurance 156 141
Postage 138 145
Professional fees 856 886
Director fees 197 168
Other 465 637

$ 2,597 $ 2,753
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Income Tax Expense

Our effective tax rate was 24.4% and 22.8% (excluding the non-tax affected goodwill impairment charge in 2009) in the first nine months of
2010 and 2009, respectively.   Our effective tax rate is currently expected to remain at approximately 25.0% throughout the remainder of 2010.
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Comparison of Results of Operations for Three Months Ended September 30, 2010 to the Three Months Ended September 30, 2009:

Net Income

Please refer to the table at the end of this Item 2 for the yield and rate data for interest-bearing balance sheet components during the three-month
periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, along with average balances and the related interest income and interest expense amounts.

Our net income available to common shareholders for the third quarter of 2010 was $228,000, or $0.07 diluted earnings per common share, as
compared to a loss of ($27.3) million, or ($8.35) diluted loss per common share, in the same period of 2009.  Operating net income available to
common shareholders for the three months ended September 30, 2009 was $511,000, or $0.16 per diluted share (see the table reconciling
Non-GAAP measures to GAAP net income above).  Net interest income remained relatively unchanged at $4.5 million for the three months
ended September 30, 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009.  The taxable equivalent net interest margin improved  10 basis point to
3.21% in the three months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to 3.11% in the same period of 2009. The improvement in net interest margin
was offset by a decline in the average earning assets of $21.3 million in the three months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to the same
period in 2009.  The yield on average earning assets decreased to 4.86% in the third quarter of 2010 from 5.30% in the third quarter of 2009. The
cost of interest bearing liabilities also decreased to 1.92% in the third quarter of 2010 as compared to 2.51% in the third quarter of 2009.

Average earning assets equaled $556.3 million during the third quarter of 2010 as compared to $577.6 million during the third quarter of 2009. 
The decrease in the level of average earning assets is primarily a result of the pay down of Federal Home Loan Bank advances in the fourth
quarter of 2009 and first quarter of 2010 as explained in the discussion of our nine month results.

Provision for Loan Losses

The decrease in the provision for the three months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009 is primarily a result of a
decrease in our loan production as well as a decrease in the balance of the overall portfolio during this period.  See the discussion of the nine
month period ended September 30, 2010, above).

Non-interest Income and Non-interest Expense

For the three months ended September 30, 2010, we had non-interest income of $922,000 as compared to non-interest income of $1.2 million in
the same period of 2009.   Deposit service charges decreased by $140,000 in the three months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to the
same period in 2009.  As stated in the discussion of our nine month results, this decrease is due to fewer items being presented on insufficient
funds. In the three months ended September 30, 2010, we had �Other-than-temporary write-downs on securities� of $440,000 as compared to
$179,000 in the same period of 2009 (see Note 4 � Investment Securities to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further information).  For
the three months ended September 30, 2010, mortgage origination fees increased to $342,000 as compared to $159,000 in the same period of
2009.  The increase in mortgage origination fees was a result of an increase in the level of refinancing activity due to continued declining
mortgage interest rates.
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Total non-interest expense increased $485,000 in the third quarter of 2010 as compared to the same period of 2009 (excluding the goodwill
impairment charge taken in the three month period in 2009).  This is a result of the increased salary and benefit costs which were $2.3 million in
the three months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to $2.1 million in the same period of 2009.  As discussed in the nine month results, this
is primarily a result of normal salary adjustments made over the last 12 months as well as a lower amount of deferred salary expense resulting
from decreased loan originations during the three month period ended September 30, 2010 as compared to the same period
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of 2009.  FDIC insurance assessments increased $108,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to the same period in
2009, primarily as a result of increased assessment rates.  As discussed previously, we anticipate that our assessment rate will remain at
approximately 21.5 basis points for the remainder of 2010.  Other real estate expense increased by $220,000 from $23,000 during the three
months ended September 30, 2009 as compared to $243,000 in the same period of 2010.  As previously discussed, this is a result of the
increased balance of other real estate owned and includes costs associated with foreclosure as well as property taxes paid on prior year
delinquent taxes on certain properties.

All other variances in non-interest expenses during the three months ended September 30, 2010 as compared to the same period of 2009 reflect
normal fluctuations in each of the categories.

Financial Position

Assets totaled $611.4 million at September 30, 2010 as compared to $605.8 million at December 31, 2009, an increase of $5.6 million.  Loans at
September 30, 2010 were $329.7 million as compared to $344.2 million at December 31, 2009.  We funded in excess of $32.5 million of new
loan production in the first nine months of 2010, but due to scheduled pay downs during the period as well as transfers from loans to other real
estate owned, loans declined by $14.5 million.  At September 30, 2010, loans accounted for 59.4% of earning assets as compared to 62.1% at
December 31, 2009.  The loan-to-deposit ratio at September 30, 2010 was 71.4% as compared to 76.6% at December 31, 2009.   Investment
securities increased from $195.8 million at December 31, 2009 to $203.3 million at September 30, 2010.  Short-term federal funds sold and
interest-bearing bank balances increased from $14.1 million at December 31, 2009 to $22.0 million at September 30, 2010.  Deposits increased
by $12.0 million to $461.6 million at September 30, 2010 as compared to $449.6 million at December 31, 2009.  During this period, we paid
down $14.9 million in callable brokered certificates of deposits.  At September 30, 2010, we had no brokered certificates of deposits.  Due to the
current economic cycle and the significant emphasis by regulators and the investment community on tangible capital, regulatory capital ratios
and overall liquidity, we have attempted to control the growth of our balance sheet and enhance our liquidity during the first nine months of
2010.  We have focused on growing our core deposit base while continuing to fund soundly underwritten loans.  To enhance our liquidity and
improve our exposure to rising interest rates (see Market Risk Management section), the growth in deposits was invested in interest-bearing
deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond and shorter maturity amortizing investments such as agency CMO�s and SBA pools.

During the second quarter of 2010, we restructured a portion of our available-for-sale investments. We sold a CDO with a carrying value of $4.9
million and realized a loss in the amount of $1.7 million.  This security had been previously downgraded to below investment grade (See Note 4 �
Investment Securities to our Consolidated Financial Statements) and did not mature until July 2014.  Approximately $41.0 million in �GSE� bonds
and mortgage-backed securities were sold that realized a gain of approximately $1.7 million.  The funds received from this transaction were
primarily invested in other securities that have a lower regulatory risk weighting such as GNMA mortgage-backed securities and SBA pools. 
Both of these types of securities carry a zero percent regulatory risk weighting and are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States
Government.  A significant portion of the proceeds were reinvested into adjustable rate securities.  As a result of this transaction, we believe we
have structured the balance sheet to continue to provide for improvement in our net interest margin in a rising interest rate environment, reduced
the level of investments rated below investment grade, as well as improved our overall regulatory capital ratios.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2010, we reclassified five private label mortgage-backed securities with a carrying value of $5.7
million, previously categorized in the held-to-maturity portfolio to the available-for-sale category.  This transfer was made as a result of changes
in circumstances that meet the accounting guidance in accordance with ASC 320-10-25-6.  This transfer meets the guidance as outlined in
section (a) as a result of a �significant deterioration in the issuer�s creditworthiness�.  The ratings agencies approach to downgrading these
mortgage-backed securities has varied significantly over the past two years and we do not believe a rating downgrade by itself is necessarily
enough or the only factor to be considered to meet section (a) of the guidance.    We believe this significant deterioration is further determined
by whether or not OTTI was recorded on the security.
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These securities have incurred OTTI and in accordance with ASC 320-10-35, at the time of the OTTI, we also recorded an unrealized loss in
accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss). The unrealized loss on these securities is treated differently than unrealized losses on our
available for sale securities for regulatory capital purposes, specifically in the way it treats the deferred tax asset on the unrealized loss.  Based
on the deterioration in credit quality, (as defined above), we believe we have met the requirements in section (a) described above and have not
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tainted the remaining held to maturity portfolio.  We currently do not intend to sell these securities and believe it is more likely than not that we
can hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be maturity.  We also do not consider these investments to have additional
OTTI in excess of amounts previously recognized at September 30, 2010.

The following table shows the composition of the loan portfolio by category:

September 30, December 31,
2010 2009

(In thousands) Amount Percent Amount Percent

Commercial, financial &
agricultural $ 19,587 5.9% $ 22,758 6.6%
Real estate:
Construction 13,214 4.0% 19,972 5.8%
Mortgage � residential 47,419 14.4% 50,985 14.8%
Mortgage � commercial 215,160 65.3% 214,178 62.2%
Consumer 34,333 10.4% 36,294 10.6%
Total gross loans 329,713 100.0% 344,187 100.0%
Allowance for loan losses (4,841) (4,854)
Total net loans $ 324,872 $ 339,333

In the context of this discussion, a real estate mortgage loan is defined as any loan, other than loans for construction purposes and advances on
home equity lines of credit, secured by real estate, regardless of the purpose of the loan.  Advances on home equity lines of credit are included in
consumer loans. We follow the common practice of financial institutions in our market areas of obtaining a security interest in real estate
whenever possible, in addition to any other available collateral.  This collateral is taken to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of
the loan and tends to increase the magnitude of the real estate loan components.  Generally we limit the loan-to-value ratio to 80%.

Market Risk Management

The effective management of market risk is essential to achieving our strategic financial objectives.  Our most significant market risk is interest
rate risk.  We have established an Asset/Liability Management Committee (�ALCO�) to monitor and manage interest rate risk.  The ALCO
monitors and manages the pricing and maturity of assets and liabilities in order to diminish the potential adverse impact that changes in interest
rates could have on net interest income.  The ALCO has established policy guidelines and strategies with respect to interest rate risk exposure
and liquidity.

A monitoring technique employed by the ALCO is the measurement of interest sensitivity �gap,� which is the positive or negative dollar difference
between assets and liabilities that are subject to interest rate repricing within a given period of time.  Also, asset/liability simulation modeling is
performed to assess the impact varying interest rates and balance sheet mix assumptions will have on net interest income.  Interest rate
sensitivity can be managed by repricing assets or liabilities, selling securities available-for-sale, replacing an asset or liability at maturity or by
adjusting the interest rate during the life of an asset or liability.  Managing the amount of assets and liabilities repricing in the same time interval
helps to hedge the risk and minimize the impact on net interest income of rising or falling interest rates.
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We are currently liability sensitive within one year.  However, neither the �gap� analysis nor asset/liability modeling is precise indicators of our
interest sensitivity position due to the many factors that affect net interest income including changes in the volume and mix of earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities.  Net interest income is also impacted by other significant factors, including changes in the volume and mix of earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities.  Through simulation modeling we monitor the effect that an immediate and sustained change in interest
rates of 100 basis points and 200 basis points up and down will have on net interest income over the next twelve months.

35

Edgar Filing: FIRST COMMUNITY CORP /SC/ - Form 10-Q

65



Table of Contents

We entered into a five year interest rate swap agreement on October 8, 2008. The swap agreement has a $10.0 million notional amount. We
receive a variable rate of interest on the notional amount based on a three month LIBOR rate and pay a fixed rate interest of 3.66%. The contract
was entered into to protect us from the negative impact of rising interest rates. Our exposure to credit risk is limited to the ability of the
counterparty to make potential future payments required pursuant to the agreement. Our exposure to market risk of loss is limited to the changes
in the market value of the swap between reporting periods. At September 30, 2010, the fair value of the contract was a negative $923,000. A fair
value adjustment of $644,000 was recognized in other income for the nine month period ended September 30 2010. The fair value of the
contract is the present value, over the remaining term of the contract, of the difference between the  swap rate for the remaining term at the
reporting date multiplied by the notional amount and the fixed interest rate of 3.66% multiplied by the notional amount of the contract.

Based on the many factors and assumptions used in simulating the effect of changes in interest rates, the following table estimates the percentage
change in net interest income at September 30, 2010, June 30, 2010,  March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 over twelve months.

Net Interest Income Sensitivity

Change in
short-term
interest
rates

September
30, 2010

June 30,
2010

March 31,
2010

December
31, 2009

+200bp +3.57% +5.72% + 5.25% +2.26%
+100bp +1.76% +2.80% + 2.60% + 1.85%

Flat � � � �
-100bp -2.49% -1.81% - 1.22% -1.61%
-200bp -6.01% -4.59% - 3.41% -6.89%

Even though we are liability sensitive, the model at September 30, 2010 reflects a decrease in net interest income in a declining rate
environment.  This primarily results from the current level of interest rates being paid on our interest bearing transaction accounts as well as
money market accounts.  The interest rates on these accounts are at a level where they cannot be repriced in proportion to the change in interest
rates.  Improvement in the impact of a rising rate environment reflects our efforts to reduce the liability sensitivity in the balance sheet
throughout 2010.  The simulated impact of rising rates can be significantly impacted by changes in estimated prepayments on our investment
portfolio.     The increase and decrease of 100 and 200 basis points assume a simultaneous and parallel change in interest rates along the entire
yield curve.

We also perform a valuation analysis projecting future cash flows from assets and liabilities to determine the Present Value of Equity (PVE)
over a range of changes in market interest rates.  The sensitivity of PVE to changes in interest rates is a measure of the sensitivity of earnings
over a longer time horizon.  At September 30, 2010, June 30, 2010, March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the PVE exposure in a plus 200
basis point increase in market interest rates was estimated to be 24.7%, 26.3%, 28.2% and 43.6%, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity measures our ability to meet current and future cash flow needs as they become due. The liquidity of a financial institution reflects its
ability to accommodate possible outflows in deposit accounts, meet loan requests and commitments, maintain reserve requirements, pay
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operating expenses, provide funds for dividends and debt service, manage operations on an ongoing basis, capitalize on new business
opportunities, and take advantage of interest rate market opportunities. The ability of a financial institution to meet its current financial
obligations is a function of its balance sheet structure, its ability to liquidate assets, and its access to alternative sources of funds.

We believe our liquidity remains adequate to meet operating and loan funding requirements.  Interest-bearing bank balances, federal funds sold,
and investment securities available-for-sale represents 28.8% of total assets at September 30, 2010.   We believe that our existing stable base of
core deposits along with continued growth in this deposit base will enable us to meet our long-term and short-term liquidity needs successfully. 
These needs include the ability to respond to short-term demand for funds caused by the withdrawal of deposits, maturity of repurchase
agreements, extensions of credit and the payment of operating expenses.  Sources of liquidity in addition to deposit gathering activities include
maturing loans and investments, purchase of federal funds from other financial institutions and selling securities under agreements to
repurchase.  We monitor closely the level of large certificates of deposits in amounts of $100,000 or more as they tend to be more sensitive to
interest rate levels, and thus less reliable sources of funding for liquidity purposes.  At September 30, 2010, the amount of certificates of deposits
of $100,000 or more
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represented 19.3% of total deposits.  These deposits are issued to local customers many of whom have other product relationships with the Bank
and none are brokered deposits.  At September 30, 2010, we had no brokered certificates of deposits.

Through the operations of our Bank, we have made contractual commitments to extend credit in the ordinary course of our business activities.
These commitments are legally binding agreements to lend money to our customers at predetermined interest rates for a specified period of time.
At September 30, 2010, we had issued commitments to extend credit of $45.0 million, including $25.0 million in unused home equity lines of
credit, through various types of lending arrangements. We evaluate each customer�s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by us upon extension of credit, is based on our credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral varies but
may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial and residential real estate.  We manage the credit risk on
these commitments by subjecting them to normal underwriting and risk management processes.

Other than as described elsewhere in this report, we are not aware of any trends, events or uncertainties that we expect to result in a significant
adverse effect on our liquidity position.  However, no assurances can be given in this regard, as rapid growth, deterioration in loan quality, and
poor earnings, or a combination of these factors, could change the liquidity position in a relatively short period of time. In addition,
the Company must currently obtain preapproval of the Federal Reserve Board before increasing or guaranteeing any debt.

The Company has generally maintained a high level of liquidity and adequate capital, which along with continued retained earnings, we believe
will be sufficient to fund the operations of the Bank for at least the next 12 months.  Shareholders� equity was 7.2% and 6.8% of total assets at
September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively. The Bank maintains federal funds purchased lines in the total amount of $20.0
million with two financial institutions, although these have not been utilized in 2009 or the first nine months of 2010.  In addition, the Bank has
a repo line in the amount of $10.0 million with another financial institution.  Specific investment securities would be pledged if and when we
were to utilize the line.  The Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta has approved a line of credit of up to 25% of the Bank�s assets, which would be
collateralized by a pledge against specific investment securities and or eligible loans.  We regularly review the liquidity position of the Company
and have implemented internal policies establishing guidelines for sources of asset based liquidity and evaluate and monitor the total amount of
purchased funds used to support the balance sheet and funding from noncore sources.  We believe that our existing stable base of core deposits
along with continued growth in this deposit base will enable us to meet our long term liquidity needs successfully.

The Federal Reserve Board and bank regulatory agencies require bank holding companies and financial institutions to maintain capital at
adequate levels based on a percentage of assets and off-balance sheet exposures, adjusted for risk weights ranging from 0% to 100%.  Under the
capital adequacy guidelines, regulatory capital is classified into two tiers.  These guidelines require an institution to maintain a certain level of
Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital to risk-weighted assets.  Tier 1 capital consists of common shareholders� equity, excluding the unrealized gain or loss on
securities available for sale, minus certain intangible assets.  In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, including certain
off-balance sheet assets, are multiplied by a risk-weight factor of 0% to 100% based on the risks believed to be inherent in the type of asset.  Tier
2 capital consists of Tier 1 capital plus the general reserve for loan losses, subject to certain limitations.  We are also required to maintain capital
at a minimum level based on total average assets, which is known as the Tier 1 leverage ratio.  At both the holding company and bank level, we
are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.  To be considered �well capitalized,� we must
maintain total risk-based capital of at least 10%, Tier 1 capital of at least 6%, and a leverage ratio of at least 5%.  Generally, to be considered
adequately capitalized, the OCC and Federal Reserve regulatory capital guidelines for Tier 1 capital, total capital and leverage capital ratios are
4.0%, 8.0% and 4.0%, respectively.

On April 6, 2010, the Bank entered into a formal written agreement (the �Agreement�) with the OCC, our primary bank regulator.  The Agreement
is based on the findings of the OCC during a 2009 on-site examination of the Bank.  As reflected in the Agreement, the OCC�s primary concern
with the Bank is driven by the rating agencies downgrades of non-agency mortgage backed securities (MBS) in its investment portfolio.  These
securities, purchased in 2004 through 2008, were all rated AAA by the rating agencies at the time of purchase; however, they have been
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impacted by the economic recession and the stress on the residential housing sector.  These ratings do not reflect the discounted purchase price
paid by the Bank.  They only reflect their analysis of the performance of the security overall, and therefore, a downgrade does not capture the
risk of loss to the Bank.  The Agreement did not require any adjustment to the Bank�s balance sheet or income statement; nor did it change the
Bank�s �well capitalized� status.  The OCC has separately established the following individual minimum capital ratios for the Bank: a Tier 1
leverage capital ratio of at least 8.00%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.00%, and a Total risk-based capital ratio of at least
12.00%.  As of September 30, 2010, the Bank exceeds each of these ratios.  The Board of Directors has appointed an
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independent compliance committee made up of directors to monitor and report on compliance with the terms of the Agreement.  The Bank
intends to take all actions necessary to enable it to comply with the requirements of the Agreement, and as of the date hereof management has
submitted all documentation required as of this date to the OCC.  There can be no assurance that the Bank will be able to comply fully with the
provisions of the Agreement, and the determination of our compliance will be made by the OCC.  However, management believes the Bank is
currently in compliance with all provisions of the Agreement.  Failure to meet the requirements of the Agreement could result in additional
regulatory requirements, which could result in regulators taking additional enforcement actions against the Bank.

The Bank�s risk-based capital ratios of leverage ratio, Tier 1, and total capital were 8.37%, 12.83%, and 14.06%, respectively, at September 30,
2010 as compared to 7.83%, 11.47%, and 12.61%, respectively, at December 31, 2009.  The Company�s risk-based capital ratios of leverage
ratio, Tier 1, and total capital were 8.77%, 13.43%, and 14.66%, respectively at September 30, 2010 as compared to 8.41%, 12.41% and 13.56%,
respectively at December 31, 2009. Our management anticipates that the Bank and the Company will remain a well capitalized institution for at
least the next 12 months.  In addition, we believe that we will continue to exceed the individual minimum capital ratios established by the OCC
noted above for at least the next 12 months.

The ability of the Company to pay cash dividends is dependent upon receiving cash in the form of dividends from the Bank. The dividends that
may be paid by the Bank to the Company are subject to legal limitations and regulatory capital requirements. The approval of the OCC is
required if the total of all dividends declared by a national bank in any calendar year exceeds the total of its net profits for that year combined
with its retained net profits for the preceding two years, less any required transfers to surplus. Further, the Company cannot pay cash dividends
on its common stock during any calendar quarter unless full dividends on the Series T preferred stock for the dividend period ending during the
calendar quarter have been declared and the Company has not failed to pay a dividend in the full amount of the Series T preferred stock with
respect to the period in which such dividend payment in respect of its common stock would occur. However, restrictions currently exist,
including within the Agreement the Bank signed with the OCC on April 6, 2010, that prohibit the Bank from paying cash dividends to the
Company.  In addition, the Company must currently obtain preapproval of the Federal Reserve Board before paying dividends.
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Yields on Average Earning Assets and Rates

on Average Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Nine months ended September 30, 2010 Nine months ended September 30, 2009
Average Interest Yield/ Average Interest Yield/
Balance Earned/Paid Rate Balance Earned/Paid Rate

Assets
Earning assets
Loans $ 339,140 $ 14,970 5.90% $ 334,991 $ 15,046 6.01%
Securities: 190,946 5,800 4.06% 221,582 8,181 4.94%
Federal funds sold and
securities purchased under
agreements to resell 25,293 72 0.38% 18,680 68 0.49%
Total earning assets 555,379 20,842 5.02% 575,253 23,295 5.41%
Cash and due from banks 7,697 8,872
Premises and equipment 18,424 19,241
Other assets 31,863 54,737
Allowance for loan losses (4,901) (4,264)
Total assets $ 608,462 $ 653,839
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
Interest-bearing transaction
accounts $ 68,219 280 0.55% $ 60,449 218 0.48%
Money market accounts 44,084 252 0.76% 34,804 245 0.94%
Savings deposits 28,772 61 0.28% 24,171 52 0.29%
Time deposits 239,974 4,267 2.38% 247,645 6,327 3.42%
Other borrowings 103,129 2,327 3.02% 144,259 3,340 3.10%
Total interest-bearing liabilities 484,178 7,187 1.98% 511,328 10,182 2.66%
Demand deposits 76,645 67,899
Other liabilities 5,102 6,370
Shareholders� equity 42,537 68,242
Total liabilities and
shareholders� equity $ 608,462 $ 653,839

Net interest spread 3.04% 2.75%
Net interest income/margin $ 13,655 3.29% $ 13,113 3.05%
Net interest income/margin
FTE basis $ 75 $ 13,730 3.31% $ 114 $ 13,227 3.07%
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FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION

Yields on Average Earning Assets and Rates

on Average Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Three months ended September 30, 2010 Three months ended September 30, 2009
Average Interest Yield/ Average Interest Yield/
Balance Earned/Paid Rate Balance Earned/Paid Rate

Assets
Earning assets
Loans $ 334,098 $ 4,946 5.87% $ 340,451 $ 5,119 5.97%
Securities: 196,501 1,846 3.73% 216,548 2,573 4.71%
Federal funds sold and
securities purchased 25,735 26 0.40% 20,611 22 0.42%
Total earning assets 556,334 6,818 4.86% 577,610 7,714 5.30%
Cash and due from banks 7,723 7,236
Premises and equipment 18,238 19,137
Other assets 32,393 54,524
Allowance for loan losses (4,938) (4,280)
Total assets $ 609,750 $ 654,227

Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
Interest-bearing transaction
accounts $ 72,570 $ 109 0.60% $ 58,094 $ 52 0.36%
Money market accounts 45,237 73 0.64% 37,671 78 0.82%
Savings deposits 30,395 19 0.25% 25,014 19 0.30%
Time deposits 234,446 1,354 2.29% 250,035 1,989 3.16%
Other borrowings 100,500 780 3.08% 139,649 1,095 3.11%
Total interest-bearing liabilities 483,148 2,335 1.92% 510,463 3,233 2.51%
Demand deposits 77,662 69,343
Other liabilities 5,589 6,609
Shareholders� equity 43,351 67,812
Total liabilities and
shareholders� equity $ 609,750 $ 654,227

Net interest spread 2.94% 2.79%
Net interest income/margin $ 4,483 3.20% $ 4,481 3.08%
Net interest income/margin
FTE basis $ 18 $ 4,501 3.21% $ 40 $ 4,521 3.11%
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PART I

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

There have been no material changes in our quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk as of September 30, 2010 from that
presented in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.  See the �Market Risk Management� subsection in Item 2,
Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market
risk, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures
as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e).  Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that our current disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of September 30, 2010.  There have been no significant changes in
our internal controls over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2010 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

The design of any system of controls and procedures is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events.  There can
be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions, regardless of how remote.

PART II

OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings.

There are no material pending legal proceedings to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party or of which any of their property is
the subject.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors.
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Not Applicable.

Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Not Applicable.

Item 3.  Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

Not Applicable.

Item 4.  (Removed and Reserved).

Item 5.  Other Information.

None.

Item 6.  Exhibits

Exhibit Description

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Executive Officer.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Financial Officer.

32 Section 1350 Certifications.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FIRST COMMUNITY CORPORATION
               (REGISTRANT)

Date: November 15, 2010 By: /s/ Michael C. Crapps
Michael C. Crapps
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: November 15, 2010 By: /s/ Joseph G. Sawyer
Joseph G. Sawyer
Senior Vice President, Principal Financial Officer
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Executive Officer.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Financial Officer.

32 Section 1350 Certifications.
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